City and County of Swansea

Notice of Meeting

Cyngor Abertawe You are invited to attend a Meeting of the
Swansea Council
e

Scrutiny Performance Panel — Adult Services
At: Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS Teams
On: Wednesday, 20 March 2024
Time: 4.00 pm

Convenor: Councillor Susan Jones

Membership:

Councillors: V A Holland, C A Holley, P R Hood-Williams, Y V Jardine, A J Jeffery,
J W Jones, E T Kirchner, M W Locke, C L Philpott and M S Tribe

Co-opted Members: T Beddow

Agenda
Page No.
1 Apologies for Absence
2 Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests
www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests
3  Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips
4  Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 1-10
To receive the minutes of the previous meeting(s) and agree as an
accurate record.
5 Public Question Time
Questions must be submitted in writing, no later than noon on the
working day prior to the meeting. Questions must relate to items on the
agenda. Questions will be dealt with in a 10-minute period.
6 Update on West Glamorgan Transformation Programme 11-29
Kelly Gillings, Regional Director of Transformation
7 Performance Monitoring 30-70

Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling Poverty
Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services

8 Briefing on Annual Review of Charges (Social Services) 2023-24 71-101
David Howes, Director of Social Services


http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

9 Work Plan 2023-24 102 - 104

Next Meeting: Tuesday, 7 May 2024 at 4.00 pm

Hoes L

Huw Evans

Head of Democratic Services
Tuesday, 12 March 2024

Contact: Liz Jordan 01792 637314

\

{'fu- Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council
"lr"—_.-f'-___



Agenda Item 4

City and County of Swansea

Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Adult
Services

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council  Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS

-_._.--—’.__

Teams

Tuesday, 30 January 2024 at 4.00 pm

Present: Councillor S M Jones (Chair) Presided

Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s)
C L Philpott M S Tribe V A Holland
C A Holley P R Hood-Williams A J Jeffery

J W Jones E T Kirchner M W Locke
Other Attendees

Louise Gibbard Cabinet Member for Care Services

Hayley Gwilliam Cabinet Member for Community (Support)
Officer(s)

Lee Cambule Tackling Poverty Service Manager

Jon Franklin Local Area Co-ordination Manager

Lucy Friday Principal Officer Transformation

Amy Hawkins Head of Adult Services & Tackling Poverty
David Howes Director of Social Services

Liz Jordan Scrutiny Officer

Helen St John Head of Integrated Community Services

Apologies for Absence
Co-opted Member(s): T Beddow

Disclosure of Personal and Prejudicial Interests

Chris Holley declared a personal interest.

Prohibition of Whipped Votes and Declaration of Party Whips
No declarations were made.

Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)

Panel agreed the Minutes of the meeting on 12 December 2023 as an accurate
record of the meeting.

Page 1



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Adult Services (30.01.2024)
Cont'd

Public Question Time
No questions were received.
Update on Adult Services Transformation and Improvement Programme

Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services and relevant officers attended to
provide an update on progress for the three main themes under the Programme and
the proposed focus for 2024-25.

Discussion Points:

e Panel queried if there are trained nurses or trained carers in care homes, and
if there is some specialist training. Informed internal residential homes are
‘care’ homes and if people are assessed with having nursing needs, they
would be supported to go into nursing provision that has medical support.
Heard teams around residential care deal with really complex care needs and
are trained in a whole suite of support.

e Panel queried how the Department is getting everyone to work together to
coordinate who needs early help. Heard in terms of communication channels,
there has been a lot of re-educating internal staff and making sure partners
understand what else it out there.

e Panel discussed the Common Access Point (CAP). There has been an
improvement in the last nine months with 28% of enquiries into CAP being
signed off or closed at point of contact. Panel pleased to see this.

e Panel asked for clarification of what ‘just checking’ means in assistive
technology. Heard it has been in operation for some time but on a small
scale. Over the last 12 months it has been pushed as an option. It is a series
of monitors that can go into a person’s home to monitor their movements and
can help inform an assessment.

e For people being maintained in their own homes, Panel queried how internal
domiciliary care staff are helped to deal with individuals who may need extra
care or might be more challenging. Informed the Service is being refocussed
as a result of feedback from staff, so there is more support from the wider
community and staff have also received training and have regular
supervision. External commissioned providers have checks and monitoring in
terms of quality and standards and they are all registered via Care
Inspectorate Wales (CIW).

e Panel queried if there is a role for GPs within the Early Help and Prevention
process. Heard there is a role but not sure where the link is and some GP
clusters are better on this than others.

e Panel asked if there is a reliance on agency staff in the carer’s role. Informed
that internally agency staff are not used for domiciliary care. Instead, there is
a reliance on staff to do overtime and cover gaps/sickness.

e In terms of the re-tendering process for externally commissioned domiciliary
care, Panel assured external providers are not being expected to do more, the
Council is having to re-tender to ensure compliance with processes. Will have
to await the conclusion of the tendering process to find out if more expensive.

Page 2



Minutes of the Scrutiny Performance Panel — Adult Services (30.01.2024)
Cont'd

e Panel discussed how the Service wants people to live independently and look
after themselves more and queried if there are any downsides to this. Heard it
is a very individual approach, some people want to be in their own home
whilst others thrive in more of a community setting of a residential home.

e Panel discussed domiciliary care in rural areas and asked about progress in
the establishment of micro enterprises to provide this service, particularly in
rural areas and making use of direct payments. Heard the number of direct
payments is up and there are more micro enterprises and social enterprises.
The Service promotes their development via SCVS and they hold a directory.

Presentation - Local Area Coordination Update

Hayley Gwilliam, Cabinet Member for Community Support and relevant officers
attended to present an update to the Panel and share some examples of the impact
Local Area Coordinators (LACs) have made. Full impact report for 2023-24 has been
drafted and the final version will be shared with scrutiny at a later date.

Discussion Points:

e Panel expressed concern about the possible loss of LAC posts due to
financial pressures and requested more information. Informed the Service is
currently out to staff consultation due to the impact of funding of the LAC
Team. Heard costs have increased, there has been no cut to Council funding
for 2024-25, but it is flat, and there has been a reduction in grant funding,
which makes up 60% of the funding. Panel noted no decisions have been
made yet and there are a number of things being considered, including criteria
and geography.

e Panel requested a breakdown of costs, including how the funding is
distributed, where funding comes and the consequential impact of LACs.
Panel feels some of the cost analysis about beneficial savings would be very
helpful in providing evidence of the benefit of LAC.

e Panel asked for a guarantee there will still be full coverage of LAC across the
Swansea City Council area. Informed this is part of what has to be
considered.

e Panel feels LACs have been doing an excellent job and have made a huge
difference. Panel Members strongly emphasised they are against losing any
LAC posts.

Actions:
e Breakdown of figures for Local Area Coordination, as detailed above, to be
provided to the Panel.

Work Plan 2023-24

Panel considered the work plan and noted items for the next meeting.

The meeting ended at 5.00 pm

Page 3



&((’"ﬂ- Cyngor Abertawe
\Y Swansea Council

Please ask for: i
Gofynnwch am: Scrutlny

To: . . . Scrutiny Office 01792 637314
Councillor Louise Gibbard Line:
Cabinet Member for Care Services b”'?e” ,
niongyrochol:
Hayley Gwilliam oval scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk
Cabinet Member for Community Support
g%%ia N 02 January 2024

BY EMAIL

cc Cabinet Members

Summary: This is a letter from the Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel to the
relevant Cabinet Members following the meeting of the Panel on 12 December 2023. It
covers Performance Monitoring and Dementia. A formal response is required.

Dear CliIr Gibbard and ClIr Gwilliam

The Panel met on 12 December 2023 to discuss the Performance Monitoring Report
for October 2023 and receive a briefing on Dementia Care including case studies.

We would like to thank you both, David Howes, Amy Hawkins and Helen St John for
attending to present the items and answer the Panel’s questions. We appreciate your
engagement and input.

We are writing to you to reflect on what we learned from the discussion, share the views
of the Panel, and, where necessary, raise any issues or recommendations for your
consideration and response.

Performance Monitoring
We heard the Highlight Report for October 2023 shows a mixed picture.

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY / TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU

SWANSEA COUNCIL / CYNGOR ABERTAWE
GUILDHALL, SWANSEA, SA1 4PE / NEUADD Y DDINAS, ABERTAWE, SA1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk /www.abertawe.gov.uk

| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &'r person uchod
To receive this information in alternatR@%8rtat, or in Welsh please contact the above



http://www.swansea.gov.uk/
http://www.abertawe.gov.uk/
mailto:scrutiny@swansea.gov.uk

We heard there was an increase in the number of safeguarding consultations again in
October. We noted the number of professional concerns and from which sector is now
included in the report, as we requested.

We praised Bonymaen House and feel it is working very well and asked that this be
passed on to the staff.

We discussed how the Court of Protection work seems very complex and queried how
social workers are managing to do this work on top of their already onerous jobs.
Officers agreed it is very complex work, but staff are being supported with it and it is
part of their role. We heard part of what is driving the Early Help Model is to try and
make sure the Service is making best use of its workforce. Court work needs social
workers to do it so you are trying to take other work away to free up social workers to
do what only they can do. The Director added that generally more and more burden is
being loaded onto a system that is not resourced sufficiently, which is a real challenge,
and the Panel’s role is to monitor what the Service is doing to try and mitigate this.

Legal Services was considered at the previous meeting in terms of increasing legal
support capacity either in-house or regionally. We queried if any more thought had
been given to ways this could be done given the level of legal work is going to increase
in terms of volume and capacity. We were informed that the preferred model currently
for legal support is an in-house model. We heard as part of budget planning, Cabinet
is currently considering the right balance of legal resource within the Council, with
advice from the Monitoring Officer, responsible managers for the legal team and
Heads of Service / Director regarding likely implications for Social Services.

We asked if it is likely the Council will join forces with other Authorities to do in-house
work or if it is a Swansea stand-alone arrangement. We were informed there is a
regional arrangement for some legal work around the Regional Partnership Board,
there may be some work around regional models of care which require legal input
where it would make sense, and some bits of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
(DoLS) are regional for the legal aspect. However, there are reservations about going
back to a fully regional arrangement.

We queried if discharge arrangements from hospital match or better the performance
of other Authorities with regards their hospital capacity. We heard Swansea is pretty
high up in the table for comparable Authorities and in terms of arrangements in place,
the integrated model in Swansea within the Council and Health Board works really
well, the arrangements are quite robust and there is good flow.

Dementia Care

We were briefed on dementia care including regional priorities, social work support,
examples of commissioned and internal dementia services and also some case
studies, as requested by the Panel. We heard that in addition a lot of work is being
done by partners, particularly in the Third Sector. We feel the Service has come a long
way towards supporting people with dementia.

In terms of Preventative Strategies, we asked for feedback on how these strategies are

doing. We heard that prevention and early intervention is a method of delivering the
regional Dementia priorities through projects under the Regional Partnership. It was

Page 5



agreed further information be provided to the Panel on local work around Dementia
Early Help and Prevention and regional work.

We queried if Marie Curie has broadened its scope to help with this aspect of illness

and were informed in terms of particular projects, the Marie Curie Project is a respite
project funded via the Regional Partnership under the Dementia Fund. You agreed to
provide further information on this to the Panel.

We asked if the job description for the Dementia Connector role could be shared with
the Panel. We heard this role is linked in with the Dementia Hub and it is a Third
Sector run project. We were informed in terms of the job description, it is something
they are doing as an organisation, and the Council does not have any influence directly
on it.

We asked about the increase in Direct Payments being provided to people with
dementia and the impact on the Council’'s spending. We heard there is an increase in
Direct Payments expenditure across the board aligned with the Council’s expenditure.
We also heard the particular care needs of this cohort of people is quite individual and
there is some recourse to direct payments to get more bespoke arrangements.

Your Response
We hope you find this letter useful and informative. We would welcome your comments
on any of the issues raised, however in this instance, a formal written response is

required by 23 January 2024 to the following:

¢ Further information on Dementia Early Help and Prevention and regional work.
e Further information on Marie Curie Project.

Yours sincerely

V((m gﬂoﬂw",

SUSAN JONES
CONVENER, ADULT SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL
CLLR.SUSAN.JONES@SWANSEA.GOV.UK

Page 6


mailto:CLLR.SUSAN.JONES@SWANSEA.GOV.UK

Cabinet Office
(//5- Cyngor Abertawe The Guildhall,

& Swansea Council Swansea, SAL 3SN

‘:_/—_\ www.swansea.gov.uk

Cllr. Susan Jones Please ask for: Councillor Louise Gibbard
Direct Line: 01792 636141
By E-mail E-Mail: clir.louise.gibbard@swansea.gov.uk
Our Ref: LG/WN
Your Ref:
Date: 2" February 2024

Dear ClIr Jones,

Thank you for the invitation to attend the Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel
Meeting on 12 December 2023. In respect of your letter, please see below in response
to your requests for additional detail.

Further information on Dementia Early Help and Prevention regional work.

There are a number of local projects being delivered which focus on the Dementia Early
Help and Prevention work. One of the most successful is the Dementia Hwb in
Swansea. The Dementia Hwb is in an accessible, central location that can be accessed
by anyone without the need for an appointment. The drop-in service enables flexibility in
helping to meet people’s wellbeing at a time that is appropriate to them. Various
organizations attend the Hwb on a regular basis and are essential in enabling the
Dementia Hwb to fully provide a wide range of resources to the public to have a
comprehensive package of information and services accessible to them. In bringing
together the services available across Swansea and surrounding areas it enables the
visitor to access these from the same location, without the need for multiple visits to
different locations. This empowers the visitor and helps to increase their wellbeing.

The Hwb is the point of contact for the community to access third party organizations on
set days during the week, this includes the Welfare Benefits Team from Swansea Carers
Centre, Community Memory Support Team for Swansea Bay University Health Board,
Neath Port Talbot Social Services, Neath Port Talbot Occupational Therapists, Swansea
Direct Payments Team, Marie Curie dementia related services, local care providers,
local social groups and more. It further provides support to individuals via self-referrals
or to family members seeking advice and support. The staff and volunteers at the Hwb
are made up of former carers and professionals from local organizations who support
those living with dementia and their carers.

In addition to the Hwb’s ‘shop front’, there are back rooms/ spaces which offer a safe
haven in the City Centre for people living with dementia to come to whilst they are
shopping, enabling carers a time limited ‘drop-off’ to have a short respite. It provides a

To receive this information in alternative format, or in We'f)sff‘gﬁlgase contact the above. g""‘* INVESTORS | BUDDSODDWYR
| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &'r person uchod. ¥« IN PEOPLE | MEWN POBL


mailto:cllr.louise.gibbard@swansea.gov.uk

PAGE 2

safe resting place for those alone and enable Hwb staff to register people for South
Wales Police Keep Safe Cymru and complete the Herbert Protocol information (a
national scheme that encourages carers, family, and friends to provide and put together
useful information which can then be used in the event of a vulnerable person going
missing. The back-office space also enables discreet conversations around personal
finances, counselling sessions the possibility for memory assessments to take place.

This project has been so successful that 5 mobile Hwbs across the Region are due to
open imminently.

Some feedback received from the public has been:

“It was a great comfort to me to visit the Hwb. The gentleman there listened and did
what they could to help. It was a relief for me to talk about my concerns for my
brother”. [Female 60+].

“I have nil to add beyond my keen appreciation for the time and energy devoted by so
many”. [Male 60+].

“I remain astonished and delighted by the Hwb's continued good work. | have
recommended its model to everyone I've spoken to and think one of the strongest selling
points is its accessibility (even if people don't need it right now, it's far better to have
‘dementia’ in the heart of the community, spoken about and shared rather than another
empty shop). | can't rate you highly enough”. [Female, 18-35years].

“The best thing is that it exists! | believe that it is a major step forward for Dementia
awareness and signposting”.

Another project is the West Glamorgan Dementia Partnership, made up of Age Cymru
(west Glamorgan), Swansea Carers Centre, NPT Carers Service and Care & Repair
Western Bay, offer information, advice and assistance via a website and phone contact.
This service offers signposting and a wrap-around service to help people address all of
the challenges that the condition presents. In addition, the Carers Centre Swansea is a
huge source of information and support for unpaid carers and those they care for.

There are a number of successful projects which specifically support people to live well
with dementia through early intervention which prevents/delays escalation of need.
These include Sporting Memories, an extremely popular project which has been running
since 2019. The project utilizes Wales'’s passion for sport and rich history, to help tackle
some of the biggest issues in the local area namely dementia, isolation and loneliness.
The project has grown rapidly from six people in Dunvant RFC in 2019 to

over 272 people supported so far this financial year across seven regional rugby clubs
with an estimated social return of circa. £3 million. Using familiar community facilities to
host the clubs, a friendly, sociable, and relaxed environment is achieved where people
can build friendship and share experiences. Attendees can reminisce and talk about
sport, maybe a game they once played in, a great match they have witnessed, or even
meeting a famous sports star from the past. BBC Sport filmed a short video about the
project in 2022, this link demonstrates the excellent service this project provides to the
community. BBC Two - Scrum V, The Ospreys scheme tackling dementia, depression
and loneliness

K(/KA Cyngor Abertawe
k Swansea Council
~

/

Page 8


https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fprogrammes%2Fp0btl47z&data=05%7C02%7CDiane.Rowden%40swansea.gov.uk%7Ce3d09428cf1748c49f6808dc1c2b27b6%7C4c2e0b76d4524d358392187fac002efe%7C1%7C0%7C638416218870869107%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C5rpydM3Q5u7TpebBdmA%2Bg27H21nrVCiThlK6wGDiao%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.bbc.co.uk%2Fprogrammes%2Fp0btl47z&data=05%7C02%7CDiane.Rowden%40swansea.gov.uk%7Ce3d09428cf1748c49f6808dc1c2b27b6%7C4c2e0b76d4524d358392187fac002efe%7C1%7C0%7C638416218870869107%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C5rpydM3Q5u7TpebBdmA%2Bg27H21nrVCiThlK6wGDiao%3D&reserved=0

PAGE 3

Additionally, there are two dementia choirs, SCVS Dementia Cafes and Forget Me Not
Clubs. These projects take place in many areas of the region to support people face to
face to improve their physical, emotional, and mental wellbeing. All the above projects
also offer information, advice, assistance, and sign posting.

Moving forwards in 2024 we are about to embark on a Listening Campaign lead by the
national Dementia program and currently being piloted in Port Talbot. Gorseinon has
been identified as the first area in Swansea to take part. This campaign will seek to
capture dementia stories from across the area to understand what is working well, and
how services can be improved. Additionally, the West Glamorgan Dementia Project
Manager and Transformation Manager are working with West Glamorgan
Communications Team to undertake a series of consultations with dementia groups,
people living with experience and their carers to assist in coproducing the Dementia
Strategic Document. This work will determine the direction of Dementia Care in West
Glamorgan, to ensure the Dementia program is prioritizing what is important to the
people living in our region. This will build on the recent engagement facilitated by Llais,
early indication is that whilst we are delivering meaningful services which impact people
positively there is still much more to be done around supporting people pre-diagnosis.

Further information on the Marie Curie Project:

The Marie Curie Dementia Care and Support Service is a mixed model of a Registered
Nurse (RN) and three Healthcare Assistants (HCASs), as well as the use of Volunteers as
a ‘Helper’ Companion Service to provide additional support for people living with
dementia and their carers. The service allows carers to take a break and help the
person living with dementia to complete the everyday tasks which can make a real
difference to quality of life, from making a cup of tea to getting to a hospital appointment.
This service is working as part of the collective early intervention and prevention
approach across health, social care and third sector community services to prevent
hospital or care home admissions and enable people to remain at home.

There is clinical supervision from a Registered Nurse and this role provides updated
care assessments or additional advice and support. By providing care and support from
HCA'’s for those people with higher levels or need or complexity, and from Volunteer
‘Helpers’ for lower-level needs, this service is enabling people to remain at home. Due
to the service having a Registered Nurse as part of the team, care assessments can be
undertaken to identify any increased need, as well as advice given to the person living
with dementia and their family as to how best to manage their current condition.
Examples of the main areas of advice and assessment given by the Registered Nurse
and HCAs include nutrition, hydration, symptom management and tissue viability as well
as escalating issues to the District Nurse Team. This advice and support provides
valuable help to carers and families and avoids unnecessary visits to GPs or hospital.

% Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council
Page 9 V



PAGE 4

| hope you find this useful, please do not hesitate to contact us if you have any further

queries around this important area of work.

Yours sincerely,

Clir Louise Gibbard

Cynghorydd / Councillor Louise
Gibbard Dyfnant a Chila

Cyd-aelod y Cabinet dros Gwasanaethau
Gofal

Cabinet Member Care Services

I - S/ / + A
/g LSV

X L7 AAAN
et ™ v
p VILLM./

Y Cynghorydd Hayley Gwilliam /
Councillor Hayley Gwilliam

Aelod Cabinet dros Cefnogaeth
Gymunedol

Cabinet Member for Community Support

% Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council
Page 10 V



Agenda Iltem 6
&((«;
Y

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

N

Report of the Cabinet Member for Care Services

Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel

WEST GLAMORGAN REGIONAL PARTNERSHIP

Purpose

To provide an update as required by the panel in relation to:
e West Glamorgan Transformation Programme

Content

This report includes:
an update on the West Glamorgan Transformation Programme

Councillors are asked
for their views on

The work of the region since March 2023

Lead Councillor(s)

CliIr Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member of Care Services

Lead Officer(s)

Dave Howes, Director of Social Services

Report Author

Kelly Gillings; West Glamorgan Regional Director of Transformation

Legal Officer

Caritas Adere

Finance Officer

Ben Smith

Access to Services
Officer

Rhian Miller

Page 11




1. Background
1.1 This report will cover the work of the West Glamorgan programme since March 2023 to date.

1.2 The report by default includes any partnership elements where integrated services are
developed on a Regional basis.

1.3 The Regional Programme has changed several times over the last 5 years.

1.4 Firstly, the Region dealt with the Health Board Boundary change and the disaggregation of
Bridgend Council from the Regional Partnership

1.5 During that time, the Programme was re-set to a Transformational Programme that was
coproduced with all partners including Third Sector, Users with Lived Experience, and Unpaid
Carers.

1.6 The COVID-19 Pandemic then shifted the region’s focus to operational facilitation and
delivery of the Emergency Arrangements needed to safeguard the population.

1.7 Once the first wave of the pandemic was waning, the Partners agreed to reset the
Transformation Programme (April 2021) only to find that by September 2021 that the
emergency arrangements had to be re-established and once again the programme paused.

1.8 The way in which Welsh Government funded the Regional Programme also changed in April
2022 and the region has developed proposals to support the first year of new Regional
Integration Fund (RIF).

1.9 The Transformation Programme was re-launched in June 2022 but however paused once
again to all the partnership to continue to meet the operational demands.

1.10  The Transformation Programme finally back up and running in September 2023 and is
making huge strides forward.

2. Transformation Board Governance Arrangements

2.1 It has become evident in 2022, during the development of the Proposals for the Regional
Integrated Funding, the review of the Population Needs Assessment and Market Stability
Reports that the Region once again must look at its Programme and Governance and re-set
if it is to achieve its Aim, Vision and deliver on its Priorities.

2.2 It was also evident that the Transformation Boards had become increasingly focused on
operational implementation of services (since West Glamorgan supported the COVID
Response) and the current infrastructure is not set up to support this.

2.3 During the review it was evident that the West Glamorgan Office support 5 differing strands

of work:

a. Supports the Regional Partnership to Deliver on its Legislative Duties.

b. Supports and facilitates Transformational Change for the Region.

c. Support and facilitate Operation Changes or Service Improvement.

d. Supports the programme by delivering Supporting Programmes such as Transforming

Complex Care, Digital and Data Transformation, and Accommodation Solutions which
includes the development and delivery of the Capital Plan.

e. Review of the Business-as-Usual Regional Programmes such as Integrated Autism
Service and Regional Adoption Service on a more regular basis to ensure that services
are continually improving and idengfyinqzopportunities for transformational change.

age



2.4 This review identified the region needed to review its programme to fully support the region in
its endeavours, but it is clear that the region must choose its priorities wisely as resources
over the coming years will be scarce.

2.5 This governance arrangement must follow the minimum investment levels as outlined in the
Regional Integration Fund guidance. For example, a minimum of 20% of the allocation must
be spend in the 3rd Sector and a minimum of 5% will be spent on Carers.

2.6 The West Glamorgan Programme was realigned is depicted in the Diagram below:

West Glamorgan Governance Structure

Local Cabinets and Health Board

3

West Glamorgan
Regional Partnership Board

Escalating Issues and . .
c(,m,,le;f,,,oducts only West Glamorgan Steering and Advisory Boards

T

Board 1 Board 2 Board 3
P Offi jori
rogramme Office Chair: Chair: Chair: Priority Colour Key

Communities & Older Peoples

Programme el e e Children and Young People Strengthening Communities
e Joint Regional Partnership Board Disability Programme Programme
for Older People’s Service e Adoption Service )
Delivery Transforming Health and

Care Services at Home

Emotional Wellbeing and Mental| [Neurodiverse Programme Transforming Mental Health

Carers Partnershi _
P Health Programme e Integrated Autism Service Services

Delivery of
Legislative Duties

Transforming Complex Care

Supporting Programmes
Commissioning Processes for Complex Care;
Accommodation Solutions (excluding funding position and decisions which will be taken to the S&AB’s);
Digital & Data Transformation;
Workforce;
Section 16 (Social Value & Social Enterprise)

Page 13



3.2
3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

West Glamorgan Area Plan for 2023-2027

The new Area Plan for the Region was approved on 25™" January 2023 by the Regional
Partnership Board

The Area Plan was endorsed through all of the statutory partners governance structures.

This Area Plan sets out how the West Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board will respond to
the findings of the West Glamorgan Population Needs Assessment published on the 15t April
2022, which captured the health and social care needs of people across the West Glamorgan
Region. It explains how the Local Authorities and the Health Board, with partners, will
address the requirements of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014.

In response to the key conclusions drawn from the Population Needs Assessment and
Market Stability Report, the West Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board has adjusted their
priorities for the next five years.

The Population Needs Assessment and Area Plan can be located here:

. Population Needs Assessment 2022-27 - West Glamorgan Regional Partnership

° Area Plan - West Glamorgan Regional Partnership

Engagement and Coproduction

We have all partner representation which includes 3 Sector, Users with Lived Experience
and Carers who are integral members of the Steering and Advisory Boards and within each
programme across infrastructure.

In 2022 the partnership endorsed the:

e West Glamorgan Coproduction Framework
e West Glamorgan Coproduction Charter

e West Glamorgan Coproduction Toolkit

Work has continued and the Regional Partnership Board endorsed the creation of the
Regional Partnership Board Forum to being together all users with lived experience and
unpaid carers together so that they have an opportunity to connect, network and support
cross cutting pieces of work

In 2023 the partnership endorsed the West Glamorgan Volunteers Strategy.

A new member of staff has been appointed to the West Glamorgan Team to specifically
support the Volunteers who represent across the programme.

Page 14


https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/west-glamorgan-population-needs-assessment-2022-2027/
https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/population-needs-assessment/
https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/area-plan/

4.6

4.7

4.7.1

4.7.2

4.7.3

4.7.4

The way in which West Glamorgan continues to develop it coproduction and engagement
arrangements is depicted in the diagram below:

West Glamorgan Regional Partnership Board

West Glamorgan Steering
and Advisory Board1

West Glamorgan Steering
and Advisory Board2

West Glamorgan Steering

and Advisory Board3

2 Carers & 2 people with
lived experience
BOARD LEVEL ROLE :
Assurance that people
with lived experience
have been involved and
the level of that
involvement is
adequate / appropriate
and has been listened to /
acted on

More carers and people
Communities & Emotllonal Wellbeing and . Children and with lived experience
Carers Wellbeing and . P Neurodiverse involved
Older Peoples . Learning Disability Young People
Partnership Mental Health Programme PROGRAMME LEVEL
Programme Programme Programme
Programme ROLE :
Co-production / level of
involvement across
programme work to be
identified and acted on
Forum Forum korum Forum Forum Forum and applies to
Arrangements in Carers Liaison Arrangements in Arrangements in Arrangements in programme work-
Progress Forum Progress Your Say Progress Progress streams / task and
finish groups

Anyone with lived
experience / carers
and wants to
participate
FORUM LEVEL ROLE :
People with lived
experiences sharing
views and experiences
to inform and improve
— co producing

Engagement:

West Glamorgan has undertaken a tremendous amount of engagement work over the last
year. Examples include:

Generic engagement / advertising the work for the regional partnership, informing
participants at events about the work going on across the regional, encouraging anyone with
lived experience to get involved in our programmes to ensure we include the voice of those
using services and those supporting people with lived experience when developing health
and social care strategies across Neath Port Talbot & Swansea.

Focussed engagement — we have focused the engagement activities to suit the audience,
often these workshops/activities are developed to engage and encourage participation from
specific population cohorts. We have used the opportunities to attend events and also
planned our own event to ensure that residents of the region are included in the development
of strategies, ensuring that the public are given the opportunity to be informed about the
developments and also feed into this to ensure the services and support that is being
provided is fit for purpose and also fit for the future.

We have run in depth engagement on the Emotional Well-being and Mental Health Strategy
across the region, gaining insights into how people look after their own mental health,
where/how people would like to receive support for their emotional wellbeing and mental
health and also any innovative ideas for support that could be provided across the region.

We have been involved in developing and running in depth engagement across the Children
and Young People’s programme with varying aims in the form of stalls at events and face to
face workshops with professionals and young people, this has included work on the
implementation and use of NEST/NYTH framework in the region, engagement to gain
insights in to CYP mental health and what is needed to support this in order to develop a

CYP Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health Strategy.
Page 15



4.7.5

4.8

4.9

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

We have worked on the engagement for the Learning Disabilities Programme, attending
many events and sessions to ensure we encourage voices of those with Learning Disabilities
to be involved in shaping the Strategy, as well as supporting the functions of the Your Say
Liaison forum at events and sessions as needed.

Newsletter

The West Glamorgan Regional Partnership Newsletter is produced on a quarterly basis to
update partners on the work progressing across the region. These updates provide a wide
range of stakeholders with a detailed update on the progress being made to integration
across the region. This is the link to access the newsletter: Newsletter - FEB 2024

Journal

New for 2024 is the West Glamorgan Joint Working Journal. Entries are posted every three
weeks or so to give a rundown of what was covered at the latest West Glamorgan Steering
and Advisory Board (SAB) meeting.

The journal also showcases digital stories produced by our Communications and
Engagement Team to demonstrate the real-life impact of the partnership’s work.

Three journal entries have been posted to date via this link
www.westglamorgan.org.uk/journal

Programme Progress

The Annual report was approved in June 23 and demonstrates some key areas of progress
made across the partnership — the annual report can be viewed: Annual Report - West
Glamorgan Regional Partnership.

The Performance Monitoring of the programme takes place twice annually and the latest
reports which were approved by the partnership and forwarded to Welsh Government can be
viewed: End of Quarter 2 (2023-24) - West Glamorgan Regional Partnership.

In appendix 1 there is a summary of the performance measures captured for all the
population cohorts for the whole of 2022/23.

The quarterly monitoring returns capture the performance data and measures for all the
Regional Investment Funding Schemes. The measures captured include ‘how much’, ‘how
well’, and ‘difference made’ which are the measures included in the original project proposal
which was the basis of the decisions for investment.

Work has continued across all Regional Partnership Boards to agree a national outcomes
framework with measures that all regions have endorsed.

Work continues locally to review more granular information on each of the projects supported
by the Regional Investment Fund.

West Glamorgan has produced a number of Digital Stories to demonstrate how it is making a
difference to the people of West Glamorgan

Wellbeing and Learning Disability Case studies:

Crafty Potters - CraftyPottersShort FINAL (vimeo.com)

This film shows the activities provided by Crafty Potters to adults with learning disabilities and
their carers and how the project has developed and the impact its making on the participants.

Awel Aman Tawe - Awel Aman TaweF-J Tai'iré Co-op on Vimeo
age



https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2024/02/West-Glamorgan-RPB-Newsletter-February-2024.pdf
http://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/journal
https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/annual-report/
https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/annual-report/
https://www.westglamorgan.org.uk/end-of-q2-2023-24/
https://vimeo.com/866321543/54a190bf16?share=copy
https://vimeo.com/840089731

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

This film follows the project’'s Community Transport Co-ordinator on her weekly journey to a
local disco for adults with learning disabilities.

BAME CYP LD Support - A Conversation with BMHS on Vimeo

This film explains how the project supports parent carers of children with learning disabilities
from ethnic minority communities in Swansea.

Interplay - Interplay - Residential Slideshow on Vimeo

This film shows weekend residential trips that Interplay run for children and young people
with learning disabilities or neurodevelopmental condition. The film explains how the
residentials provide opportunities to those who attend to develop life skills.

Carers Partnership - This short clip gives some further information on the project from carers.
Male Carers V.4.1 (vimeo.com)

Children and Young People
Y-Hub https://vimeo.com/879443612/abdcb4956a?share=copy

This film shows some of the activities provided by the Y Hub to children and young people in
Swansea who are at risk of being involved in county lines, antisocial behaviour and
exploitation as well as those not in education or training. The film shares the impact of the
project on young people.

Brighter Futures https://vimeo.com/881712556/bc89aae5a7?share=copy

This film shows a visit to Faith in Families, a charity which provides support to families who
have experienced a variety of issues. Their initiative, Brighter Futures offers a range of
therapeutic support, and we hear from some of the people involved why the project is so
important.

Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health

In the last reporting period project Farming for Wellbeing, which supports people, who
struggle with mental health issues, with long-term unemployment, have learning disabilities or
ASD diagnosis to improve their emotional and mental wellbeing by utilising 5 Ways for
Wellbeing principles and work at the community Farm. Information about this project and
people it is supporting can be find in this short digital story:

https://vimeo.com/885418451/f8adcd2c6b?share=copy

Another example is the digital story of one of the volunteers at the West Glamorgan Mental
Health Hub project, who explains who being involved in this piece of work is making positive
changes in her life.

https://www.facebook.com/watch/?v=543602544529330

Further volunteers and Service Users of West Glamorgan Mental Health Hub provide more
insight to help they received via the Hub. Each of them highlighted how important it was for
them to access support when they needed it most and how much they would like to give back
to community to improve someone else situation.

https://www.facebook.com/watch/?v=1159774848066304
Communities and Older People

This story shows how bringing individuals together for a low impact dance class can support
them to gain physical confidence and techniques which can support them to remain safe from
falls as well as provide them with a community in which they can meet new friends and
access support if needed. Dance to Health Final (vimeo.com)

Digital Stories are now embedded into the qualitative evidence that we provide the
partnership, and a rolling programme has been planned. Welsh Government are very
complementary on our digital stories and have requested that other regions in Wales

replicate this approach.
P PP Page 17


https://vimeo.com/822986425
https://vimeo.com/840092517
https://vimeo.com/892252907/821fad5f31?share=copy
https://vimeo.com/879443612/abdcb4956a?share=copy
https://vimeo.com/881712556/bc89aae5a7?share=copy
https://vimeo.com/885418451/f8adcd2c6b?share=copy
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?v=543602544529330
https://www.facebook.com/watch/?v=1159774848066304
https://vimeo.com/886400716/1b49b37efc?share=copy

10.

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications associated with this report
Financial Implications

There were no financial implications for core funding in this programme. All programmes and
projects are funded via Regional Investment Fund.

The Regional Investment Fund however expires in March 2027 and there are significant risks in
relation to the existing funded schemes and planning will need to be undertaken in terms of risk
mitigation given there is approximately £6m allocated to Swansea Council schemes.

Integrated Assessment Implications

The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic
duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales)
Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

° Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Acts.

. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who
do not.

. Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-economic disadvantage
. Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language
. Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

. Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales
must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of
improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking action,
in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the ‘well-being
goals’.

Our Integrated Impact Assessment (lI1A) process ensures we have paid due regard to the
above. It also takes into account other key issues and priorities, such as poverty and social
exclusion, community cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the
Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.

An 1llIA Screening has been undertaken and is appended to the report. The Regional
Partnership Board supports the development of integrated services across the region and adds
value and improves the services delivered to the population of Swansea. The culminative
impact can be demonstrated as positive. This is evidenced within our Annual Reports and
progress as reported though to the Regional Partnership Board.

There is positive impact on the population as a result of this report, however direct implications
of service changes will be determined when services are transformed. The action plan or
programmes related to service change will be subject to the Il1A process.

Risk Management
All individual programmes and projects utilise a risk management strategy.

Background Papers: page 18



Not applicable

Page 19



Appendix 1 - Infographics of Performance for 2022/2023

CARERS 5,856 2,654 /-’& 28 3,347

7
CARERS | pererraLs R/ ' D CARERS
SUPPORTED PROVIDED WITH SUPPORT

OR INTERVENTION SESSIONS

1 1 7 CAREIE e 1 ] 486 2,483 CARERS 99 1
o voune carers RECEIVED FOUND SUPPORT CARERS @
ATTENDED W SESSIONS RECEIVING WELLBEING (%W v
RESIDENTIAL RESPITE BENEFICIAL SUPPORT FOUND ¥

THIS BENEFICIAL TO THEM

i 384 SR
% 255 CARERS

CARERS REPORTED
SAID THEY FELT THEIR l ’ FEELING LESS (PEER, 1:1 AND GROUP)

PROGRAMME

RESPITE WEEKEND

abed

NEEDS WERE MET ISOLATED
IEE 14,213
RECEIVED YOUNG PEOPLE REACHED
Q 1 165 recervena P O~ THROUGH PCSE / AWARENESS
// CARER'S SUPPORT RAISING SESSIONS IN SCHOOLS

E PLAN ASSESSMENT AND COLLEGES

1,877 recerveoa . 778 RECEIVED | ¢ 306 2 405
THIRD SECTOR ~7AR\- INFORMATION, —I  CARERS CONTACTE TO
ASSESSMENT - 5 et e [ECEIVED THE SERVICE

ASSISTANCE TRAINING




PROGRAMME
1,314 6
540 reorLE CONTACTS

ACCESSEDTHE o %

SERVICES Sy @ﬁ 90

r ACTIVITIES PROVIDED

16 voLunTEERS
RECRUITED 3 PEOPLE RECEIVED
SPECIALIST
SUPPORT @
® 331 p—
PEOPLE
ACHIEVED @ MAINTAINED OR IMPROVED
PERSONAL THEIR EMOTIONAL HEALTH

OUTCOMES




CHILDREN AND YOUNG ‘
PEOPLE PROGRAMME 3’436 /.

REFERRALS ‘_j

\:4,313
" ENQUIRIES

© 632 1.499 1,141
@‘ﬁ ACTIVITES 4 FAMILIES
FAMILIES
dd PROVIDED SUPPORTED REPORTED A

SUPPORTED POSITIVE EXPERIENCE

843 o~ 7,893
THERAPEUTIC CHILDREN @

INTERVENTIONS SUPPORTED

22z abed

PERFORMANCE MEASURES BASED ON PROJECTS WHERE PEOPLE PROVIDED FEEDBACK:

569 96 CHILDREN/ 151 @ 2,794

FAMILIES ATTENDING PARENTS/ S e S
REPORTED e CARERS
(o\' THEIR ACTIVITIES REPORTED IMPROVED FAMILIES REPORTED

REPORTED A POSITIVE CNOWLEDGE TO IMPROVEMENT
NEEDS WERE EXPERIENCE IN THEIR

BETTER SUPPORT
MENTAL HEALTH

MET ***** THEIR LOVED ONES




8,455

339 sionrosten

TO OTHER MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES

3,216 ceorie

MAINTAINED
OR IMPROVED THEIR
EMOTIONAL HEALTH
& WELLBEING

il
P AN
ili

®

2, 701 rerort

IMPROVED ACCESS
TO SERVICES

WAL ’,
3,516 ;,_;
PEOPLE REPORTED “\|/°
INCREASED KNOWLEDGE
OF SERVICES AVAILABLE

x
b W

REFERRALS

WELLBEING SUPPORT
SESSIONS PROVIDED

ofa}
M\ 7,750

PEOPLE WITH DEMENTIA
AND CARERS SUPPORTED

7,325 peopLE @

REPORTED POSITIVE
EXPERIENCE

3,502 ccoric

ATTENDED AWARENESS
RAISING SESSIONS

2,440

& (&

6,004 @[

PEOPLE ASSESSED

BY THE SERVICE 9 E

dd PROVIDED

5,819

PEOPLE REPORTED THEY
WERE SATISFIED WITH

THE SERVICE
THEY £ —
RECEIVED

v 1 0 1 THERAPEUTIC
vl INTERVENTIONS

PROVIDED

1,038

BETTER ABLE TO

COPE WITH THEIR
MENTAL HEALTH




EMOTIONAL WELLBEING &

MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAMME 3 7 89 0 1’724 26 SIGNPOSTED
TO OTHER s
23,970 G sweenDF o

COMPLETED
‘J REFERRALS HEALTH SERVICES

RECEIVED
2,437 2,552 2,649
465 REPORTED AN REPORTED BEING HAVE SEEN A
Py IMPROVEMENT IN SATISFIED WITH THE POSITIVE CHANGE IN
weLLBeine @ THEIR EMOTIONAL AND  SEpRyICE THEY THEIR MENTAL
ACTIVITIES % MENTAL HEALTH ERCENVED HEALTH
PROVIDED -~ /
8 336 PEOPLE OFFERED 2! 7530
& @ THERAPEUTIC ﬁg REPORTED THEIR
% v 1,962 INTERVENTIONS 2 1,071 NEEDS WERE MET
ATTENDING =2 | = A ENDED

WELLBEING ACTIVITIES &D 808 AWARENESS RAISING

THERAPEUTIC
SESSIONS
REPORTED A POSITIVE e 1,749

EXPERIENCE SESSIONS PROVIDED REPORTED
IMPROVED ACCESS

1 230 MU 6207%ns o & f s 1132 "

COUNSELLING THE RIGHT TIME
SESSIONS PROVIDED
SERVICES




gy

1,411

PEOPLE 65+ SUPPORTED

4 IN RESIDENTIAL OR
o NURSING CARE

£2.75M

‘ WORTH OF BED
DAYS SAVED
THROUGH CLINICAL
CARE AT HOME

1,558 PEOPLE 18+

SUPPORTED WITH
DOMICILIARY CARE
(MONTHLY AVERAGE)

N

21 DEEP-CLEANS/

DECLUTTERING +
ARRANGED BY
THIRD SECTOR +

HOURS OF EXTERNAL
DOMICILIARY CARE
COMMISSIONED

) 14,513

BED DAYS AVOIDED, EQUATES
TO COST AVOIDANCE OF

£2.75M

369

PEOPLE HAD

PERIOD OF

REABLEMENT IN RESIDENTIAL
SETTING BEFORE RETURNING
HOME FROM HOSPITAL

16 7 PEOPLE

rl-‘ ¢ TRANSFERRED TO

l:-— STEP UP STEP DOWN

3 BED FROM HOSPITAL

1,609 veonis

DISCHARGED FROM
HOSPITAL
SUPPORTED WITH
REABLEMENT AT
HOME

HOME INDEPENDENTLY
AFTER RESIDENTIAL
REABLEMENT

ole igz

DISCHARGED FROM
HOSPITAL INTO A CARE
HOME OF CHOICE

633 v,

PEOPLE DISCHARGED
FROM HOSPITAL
SUPPORTED BY THIRD
SECTOR




PREVENTION AND COMMUNITY 34 PEOPLE RECEIVED Low O 120 .l? ;.
COORDINATION LEVEL SUPPORT FOR (Ty ) SOCIAL ..'
OLDER PEOPLE l | AND MICRD o
ENTERPRISE GROUPS
SUPPORTED

2848

ASSISTIVE

B 500 chroren 5
VELECARE ITEMS PROVIDED AND YOUNG PEOPLE SUPPORTED @) 6 II:DT;I:;:;S
WITH WELLBEING AND

\u@ IN SETTING
5 0 MENTAL HEALTH @ UP A MICRO
COMMUNITY MEMBERS

ENTERPRISE

ENGAGED AND SUPPORTED 8

WITH COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES, 62 PEOPLE SUPPORTED + @ 27 4 1no1vivuacs

_Ig'E'H'ELDPHEHT SUPPORT AND FUNDING ADVICE WITH DECLUTTERING \/\ SUPPORTED
y 2
THEIR HOMES 3 C’) THROUGH
COMMUNITY
972, 20% or 5

abe

EnERRALS VIA ® O BASED SUPPORT
‘INTRODUCTIONS’
JINDIVIDUALS ner Lac For () 0 O 73
SOCIALISING AND - 1944
LINKED TO SWANSEA 15% For SUCCESSFUL .
LOCAL AREA CO- 0 | R PEOPLE
MENTAL HEALTH — = IN SWANSEA
ORDINATORS (LAC) SOCIAL CARE \Qf‘

SUPPORTED

TRAINING VIA
O O
534 ) 4472 A, e
POSITIVE CHANGES ADVICE, ASSISTANCE
INDIVIDUALS ARE L‘\ /'4 REPORTED '

WITHIN THE
AND SIGN POSTED
SUPPORTED THROUGH 1:1 — SOCIAL CARE SECTOR TO COMMUNITY

PROVISION AT ANY ONE i OR FURTHER SUPPORT
TIME VIA LAC IN NPT TO SWANSEA LAC EDUCATION AT OUR ‘FRONT DOOR’



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form.

Which service area and directorate are you from?
Service Area: West Glamorgan
Directorate: Social Services

Q1 (a) What are you screening for relevance?

] New and revised policies, practices or procedures

] Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider community, service
users and/or staff

[] Efficiency or saving proposals

] Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning

[] New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment, e.g., new
construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services, changing location

[]  Large Scale Public Events

[] Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation

=4 Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services
Board, which impact on a public bodies functions

[] Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service delivery and
improvement plans)

] Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language strategy)

[] Major procurement and commissioning decisions

] Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh language opportunities and

services

(b) Please name and fully describe initiative here:

To provide an update as required by the Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel in relation
to the West Glamorgan Transformation Programme

Q2 What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could be positive
(+) or negative (-)
High Impact Medium Impact Low Impact Needs further
investigation

Children/young people (0-18)
Older people (50+)

Any other age group

Future Generations (yet to be born)
Disability

Race (including refugees)
Asylum seekers

Gypsies & travellers

Religion or (non-)belief

Sex

Sexual Orientation

Gender reassignment

Welsh Language
Poverty/social exclusion
Carers (inc. young carers)
Community cohesion
Marriage & civil partnership
Pregnancy and maternity

L]

N I O I
O I
~ LHOOOOOOO00O00O00000 +
I I
DADADADADADARIRIRIRIRIDIDIDIDIDADAIA] +
O I
N O O

D
N

Pag



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Q3 What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.qg.
engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?
Please provide details below — either of your activities or your reasons for not
undertaking involvement

The report is an update to the Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel
regarding work across West Glamorgan though the last year and is past tense

Q4 Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in the
development of this initiative:

a) Overall does the initiative support our Corporate Plan’s Well-being Objectives when considered

together?
Yes [X] No[ |
b) Does the initiative consider maximising contribution to each of the seven national well-being goals?
Yes [X No[ |
c) Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working?
Yes [X No[ |

d) Does the initiative meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs?

Yes [X] No[ |

Q5 What is the potential risk of the initiative? (Consider the following impacts — equality,
socio-economic, environmental, cultural, legal, financial, political, media, public
perception etc...)

High risk Medium risk Low risk
[] X

Q6  Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other Council service?

[ ] Yes > No If yes, please provide details below

Q7 What is the cumulative impact of this proposal on people and/or communities
when considering all the impacts identified within the screening and any other key
decisions affecting similar groups/ service users made by the organisation?

(You may need to discuss this with your Service Head or Cabinet Member to consider more widely if this
proposal will affect certain groups/ communities more adversely because of other decisions the
organisation is making. For example, financial impact/poverty, withdrawal of multiple services and
whether this is disadvantaging the same groups, e.g., disabled people, older people, single parents (who
are mainly women), etc.)

No impact as this is a report for the work over the last year

Page 28



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Outcome of Screening

Q8 Please describe the outcome of your screening below:
e Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed (Q2)
Summary of involvement (Q3)
WFG considerations (Q4)
Any risks identified (Q5)
Cumulative impact (Q7)

There are no Integrated Assessments Implications associated with this report

(NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the relevant section of corporate report)
[] Full 1A to be completed

X Do not complete IIA - please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to support this
outcome

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before
obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via
email.

Screening completed by:

Name: Kelly Gillings

Job title: West Glamorgan Regional Director of Transformation
Date: 29.02.24

Approval by Head of Service:

Name: Kelly Gillings

Position: West Glamorgan Regional Director of Transformation
Date: 29.02.24

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.goVv.uk

Page 29


mailto:accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

(&
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

e

Report of the Cabinet Member for Care Services

Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel — 20 March 2024

PERFORMANCE MONITORING

Purpose To present the Adult Services monthly performance
report for January 2024
Content The Adult Services report includes the latest

performance management information, including;
enquires through the Common Access Point, Client
Reviews, Carers Assessments, Residential and
Community Reablement, Domiciliary and Residential
Care, and Safeguarding responses.

Councillors are Consider the report as part of their routine review of
being asked to performance in Adult Services.
Lead Clir Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services

Councillor(s)

Lead Officer(s) Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services & Tackling
Poverty

Helen St.John, Head of Integrated Services

Report Author Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services & Tackling
Poverty

01792 636245

Amy.Hawkins@swansea.gov.uk

Helen St.John, Interim Head of Integrated Services
Helen.StJohn@wales.nhs.uk
01792 636245

Page 30



mailto:Amy.Hawkins@swansea.gov.uk
mailto:Helen.StJohn@wales.nhs.uk

Adult Services
Management Information
Headline Report
Data for January 2024




Adult Services Vision

People in Swansea will have access to modern health and social care services which enable them to lead fulfilled lives with a sense of
wellbeing within supportive families and resilient communities. We will help people to keep safe and protected from harm and give
opportunities for them to feel empowered to exercise voice, choice and control in all aspects of their lives.

Doing What Matters

Adult Services will focus on strengths, prevention, early intervention and enablement. We will deliver better support for people making
best use of the resources available supported by our highly skilled and valued workforce.

Agreed Service Priorities for 2023/24

Promoting people's voice
Ensuring a valued & skilled workforce
Better Prevention & Early Help
Keeping People Safe
Enabling & Promoting Independence
- Financial Efficacy
& Resources which meet the needs of our community
8.0, Focus on quality & continuous improvement
N

ouswNE



Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services & Tackling Poverty
Summary

The Social Work Mental Capacity Act Assessments and reviews completed
increased in January. All SW teams have been engaged with and contributed
to the Assessment and Care Planning restructure options development and
additional opportunities for improvements have been identified which will be
progressed by the Social Work teams.

The number of Carers identified and Carers Assessments completed has
returned to pre-Christmas levels.

In the last three months we’ve seen 70% of people returning home from
Residential Reablement independently and with packages of care. The
number of beds in Bonymaen has increased to 28 over the Winter period to
support increased demand from Hospital. The people in the 8 Dementia re-
settlement beds in Ty Westfield unit in Ty Waunarlwydd are achieving good
outcomes supporting people returning home or to longer-term placements
post-hospital.

Vgle are seeing continued stability in our external Domiciliary Care market and
vie are seeing continued growth the in number of people receiving care at home
and there remains good allocation of new packages of care. 121 Packages
of Care were allocated in January. The average hours of care per individual
has remained fairly steady and currently at 8.5 hours per week in the external
market. Providers continue to report cost pressures in Domiciliary Care along
with Residential Care and Supported Living.

In internal residential services we continue to focus on increased step-up from
the community, long-term complex and have increased respite capacity.
Average time in short-term placements continues to decrease in the average
time people are in service, indicating that people’s move on plans are being
implemented quicker. Processes for emergency admissions is working well.

The total attendance over the month at Day Services has increased, although
there has been a slight reduction in unique individuals. Specific focus has
been on Older Person’s Day Services and ensuring the availability of
provision due to an external provider leaving the market.

The Safeguarding Team determined 89% of Adult at Risk (AAR) cases within
7 days, this is an improvement in recent months. The team continue with
high numbers of consultations from different providers and directly from the
community. New DoLS applications and the backlog has increased this
month again, recent national report indicates Swansea has the highest
number of applications nationally.

Helen StJohn, Head of Integrated Services Summary

The volume of contacts received in the Common Access Point during
January 2024 demonstrates a real return to the highest level of demand. Of
the overall figure of 772 enquiries there was a reduction of 4% in those able
to be closed following the provision of Advice and Information with a
corresponding increase of over 7% in the cases which required
multidisciplinary team intervention due to the complexity of the presenting
issues.

The significant increase in the number of task notes created in January tells
us that a higher number of contacts to CAP were from individuals already
known to us and either waiting for support or reporting a change in their
circumstances to us — the data shows a fairly even split in reason.

The team also managed 97 rapid responses — the highest number since
Feb 2023 and a 61% increase on the activity for last month. The percentage
of rapids responses able to be closed at CAP was lower than recent
months.

In summary, our front door is receiving high levels of demand with much of
the need presenting as urgent and complex. The high

number of individuals already known to us may be an indication that we
continue to provide proportionate support to an increasingly frail population
which maintains their safety and independence at home and is required to
manage the variability of condition linked to the degree of frailty and carer
considerations.

The care management activity reflects the above in the increase in care and
support plans generated as does the related number of carers identified and
offered an assessment.

Domiciliary reablement activity levels are high and it is particularly positive
to note the increasing number of people receiving reablement following
community referral. This reflects the service drive to rebalance internal dom
care reablement delivery in a stronger preventative direction. Whilst the
clear value of reablement following hospital stay has been well documented
we are keen to further support maintaining individuals safely in their own
homes and reducing chances of hospital admission where possible.
Prevention and reablement form key strands of our transformation plan so
positive developments in this area is welcome.

The service is undertaken work to understand the planned vs actual hours
delivered and to ensure effective use of this resource.




_/ Common Access Point

.~ Referrals created at the Common Access Point - Data is being further validated but it has been confirmed that the process
is for all referrals for social care (not closed in CAP) go via MDT rather than directly to the Social Care teams.

1000
900

800

B
o
700
¢ — —t 184 o
123 202 206
600 139 218 203 208
129 181 201
134 102 115 179 158 180 192
500 101 184 170 184 169
164
400
300
200 11 15
o
Q 100
Q
)
w 0
-b o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o~ o o~ o~ o~ [a2] o o o o m o (2] (2] m [22] [22] <
c o) 3 = > c = =7 o + > o c o = = > c = oo o s > =3 c
= 2 s 2 g 3 2 2 g S 2 & s g g & 2 3 2 k) 3 S 2 8 5

& Out of hours contact = Residential care = Secure Estate EEDT & Third Sector Broker = MDT = Social Work teams (inc. CIAT & HFSWT) ® Safeguarding ® Integrated community health teams =~ Complete at CAP & Other

Itis important to note that referrals for Safeguarding, DOLS and PPNs are now going directly to the Safeguarding team rather than via CAP. This partly accounts for the reduction
in enquiries created from Aug 2020. 98 referrals (AAR, PPNs & Suicides) were recorded directly in the Safeguarding team in January (69 in December 2023).

7 7 2 Referrals in Jan 24 5 8 3 Referrals in Dec 23 T e et

5000

191 Closed - Provided Advice & Information 169 Closed - Provided Advice & Information P

(24.7%) (29%) o “
271 MDT (35.1%) 163 MDT (28%) 2500 I
4 directly to SW Teams (<1%) 2 directly to SW Teams (<1%)

1500

H : . . 1000 1866, 1903181319591961 1848
306 to integrated therapies (39.6%) 249 to integrated therapies (42.7%) w20 LR 1414177016431668, 101 570152415771656151616661530; 3,
581 Referrals were created by CAP in January 2023 REEE372402882 282833286248 %

no of emails received into CAP  m Calls Answered = Outgoing Calls

4 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Referrals are recorded on to WCCIS by CAP for all new requests

for information or Advice/Support.

However, for existing clients, CAP will record a Task for the
appropriate owning/involved team if they are unable to support.

250

G¢ abed

200

150

100

50

200

171

127

Total Tasks and Referrals Created each Month by CAP

2000

1500

1000

50

o

Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

Teams CAP Created Tasks for Over Months

205

176
160

137
124

73

5 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

2827 31555 y
13 10
4 28 66
o o N\ o o o Q>
@ & R
& <& S & & @ >
>
) < N 5 R )
& \ O Y & Q
> S V&S &
Q\\ "_)\(‘ Qg'
e S <&
Q~°& RS
Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

B Tasks M Referrals

" 24121
97 12 22
< \s . 9
0’29@ Q‘é\ ,z,\b\(\ ,\‘B'\’
N N
(0 S
= &
~\$\'z>



CAP MDT

CAP MDT Data for January 2024 — further development & validation work is being undertaken.

CAP MDT Rapid Response
408 CAP Referral Source Team January 2024
MDT

referrals

Home First Social Work
Team, 8, 8%

Reablement, 1, 1%

> 311 Other Created in CAP MDT, 2,
97 Rapid referral 2%
X T C lex East,
Responses types of ong Tem Compex 25

of which:
Community SW East, 1,

1%
Long Term Comm Review I~ Common Access Point,
Team, 4, 4%/ n e
were passed to
Care and CRS Edt, 5, 5%

teams

9¢ abed

Community Initial
Assessment Team, 4, 4%
- 10 to CAP

CAP MDT Non Rapid Response
I e pa—— Referral Source Team January 2024

= 48 to CIAT

= & to CAP

. 14 to LT f5tat
m 1z Fc' LT/5tat ReviewsTeam
Review Teams Home First Social Work

Team, 11
Stt Review East, 1

55 tix SW East & Created in CAP MDT, 13
Wastf LT { Xyla Reablement, 1
: Long Term Comm Review

Team, 18

13 to 5W East &

west/Xyla

Edt, 3

P P— 3 to Home First Community SW East, 2

gl ream | Pathways| ™1 Team J/ Pathways Community SW West, 1
Community Initial
Assessment Team, 6

13 to CRS and

Common Access Point,
Sensory Teams

255

4 to anather
SErViCce

6 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Non Rapid Response Referralsin MDT and their Destination

350
Rapid Response Referralsinto CAP MDT and Outcome 200 3
120 267 73 270 &
97 97 250 239 231
100 86 86 85 87 220 / 66 226 & 56
80 76 7 53 202 228 218
80 26 67 200 52 o o1
24 60 17 60 63 7,5 23 50 5t 5 " I
60 18 13 s6
11 15 21 150
40
20 I 100
0 50
Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24
. . 0
Rap|d Response Referrals Closed in CAP MDT Jan-23  Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23  Jul-23  Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24
M Rapid Response Referrals passed to SW teams from MDT mCAP = Carers Centre = Community Dementia Support
= Community Initial Assessment Team M Closed in CAP MDT B Other Teams
" CRS Teams Review, East & West
QD
«Q
@
Type and Amount of Services Requeslaed b? CAP MDT each month . Assessments Undertaken/Forms Completed by CAP MDT
(via a Service Order SummaryForm)
80 250
70
60 200
50
4‘] 150
30
100
20
10
50
0
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Mov Dec
2023 2024 ’ Aug Sep Oct Nowv Dec Jan
W Day Services ® Domicifiary Care [including Respite 3t Home) B Swansea - AS Transfer Record o

m Residentizl Respite ® Residential/Nursing Care

B Transport

W Swansea -
M Swansea -
m Swansea -
M Swansea -

M Swansea
M Swansea

AS Social Work Assessment

AS Social Care Review

AS Service Order Summary Form V.2

AS Care & Support Plan

- AS - Mental Capacity Assessment and Best Interests Record
- AS - Closure Record

7 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




What is working well?

Managing the Rapid Response cases at the
front door. Dealt with 80 rapid response cases
in the month of January compared to 39 in
December, 17 Rapid Response cases closed
at the MDT function of the front door.

Significant Increase in referral at the front door
for care home placements both residential and
nursing as well as a significant increase in
packages of care at home.

What are we worried about?
e There are only three social workers in the MDT

function as there are two social work vacancies
and one vacancy due to maternity leave.

Concerned that this theme of increase for
services at the front door will continue into
February. Worried about the complexity of
cases be presented at the front door.

\ What we are going to do?

Two social workers have been recruited into
the team. The staff will be starting in post at
the end of February.

e Closely monitor the referral at the front door to

establish if there is an upward trend in
requests for theses specific services in
February.

8¢ abed

8 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Assessments & Reviews

Reviews

Information on completed reviews in timescales are part of the new Welsh Government Performance Framework and
Corporate Reporting. The reports have been developed but require substantial validation, currently this data will only be
available on an annual basis.

Adult Social Work Assessments Completed Mental Health CPA Assessments Completed
by CMHTS & OPMH
AS Social AS Social AS Care & MH CPA MH Care &
Work Ass Work Support Assessments Treatment Plans &
Completed Reviews Plans Completed Reviews
Completed Completed Completed

6€ abed

Jan24 | 202 7> | 157 )| 421 san24 | 108 147

Dec23 217 116 309 Dec 23 64 50

Nov23 306 194 466 Nov 23 114 113

9 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Adult Social Work Assessment, Review and Care & Support Plans Completed

1200

1000 939

Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Now-22 Dec-22 lJan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

R N Swansea - AS Care & Support Plan I Swansea - AS Social Care Review I Swansea - AS Social Work Assessment ==Total Distinct Count of Client ID
Q
3
5 Mental Health CPA Assessment, Review and Care&Treatment Plans
400 381
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
0
Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24
mm All Wales - MHM - MH & LD Assessment (v4) mm All Wales - MHM - MH & LD Care and Treatment Plan (v4)
mmm All Wales - MHM - MH & LD Review (v4) ===Total Distinct Count of Client ID

10 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Community Teams

What is working well?

Positive growth in the needs assessment and
review of care and support plans completed
this month.

What are we worried about?
e Demand for social work assessment continues to
be higher than the capacity to complete this work.
e Growth in the complexities of case work and the
delays of outside factors which impact on case
management (Court, NHS processes).

What we are going to do?

¢ Reconsider recruitment opportunities to
maximise workforce ability to manage demand.

e Continue to consider innovation to enhance
smarter timescales.

Mental Health and Learning Disability Services

What is working well?

What are we worried about?

® 1y obed®

Joint working with C&F services continues to
provide greater clarity on future need and
service demands in adult services.

Right Care Right Person discussions locally
are slowly providing greater clarity regarding
change in police responses to public welfare
issues.

e The demand on adult services for those
transitioning from Childrens services in the
next 2 years appears high.

e There remains a lack of clarity regarding the
long-term implications for practice and
approach following Right Care Right Person.

\ What we are going to do?
¢ Regular focus and finance meetings locally and
regionally are helping to plan for future
demand.

¢ Work with local Police liaison meetings to focus
on the implications of this new approach.

11 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Carers and Carers Assessments

Updated Carers Information:

completed on WCCIS.

Carers identified in Jan 24

99 offered assessment (86%)

40 assessments/reviews undertaken

Zv abed

91

Carers identified in Dec 23
80 offered assessment (87.9%)

33 assessments/reviews undertaken

113

Carers identified in Nov 23
105 offered assessment (92.9%)

55 assessments/reviews undertaken

140

120

100

100%
80%
60%
40%
20%

0%

12 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

Carers Information is now successfully being extracted from WCCIS however it continues to be validated with a view to
improve on accuracy and completeness of information. Work to be undertaken to ensure data is appropriately entered and

Accepted/Declined Offer of Assessment

5

1 I

Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

mmmm Declined Assessment mm \Wanted Assessment === |dentified Carers

Outcomes of Completed Carers Assessments

19
19
29 24 26 28
B . o e
Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

 No Care and Support needs to be met
Needs can only be met through a Care & Support Plan
B Needs are able to be met by other means
More Comprehensive Assessment required / Protection from Abuse or Neglect

m Blank



Carers Assessments and Reviews Completed

Carers Assessments / Reviews Completed

36
40
I 33

100

90

80

7

o

[=2])
o

5

o

4

o

3

o

2

o

o 1
& 0
@
a 0
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
2022 2023 2024
B Swansea - AS Social Care Review W Social Work Ass for Carers Carer's Assessment

What is working well? What are we worried about? What we are going to do?

e New Carers Assessment embedded in e The Carers Assessment offer has marginally e Carers Awareness training planned to increase
performance data. declined. workforce knowledge.

e Steady increase of Carer Assessments
completed.

13 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Residential Reablement

During November, December and January Residential Reablement services in Bonymaen had an overall percentage of
70% of people returning to their own homes, independently and with care packages.

Admissions

(Jan 24)

19 from Hospital
1 from Community

People left residential
reablement (Jan 24)

People went home
6 with care, 8 with no care, B .

15 people left residential
reablement in Jan 23

Admissions People left residential People went home /\
(Dec 23) 2 1 reablement (Dec 23) 1 6 6 with care, 9 with no care,
B[

3 hospital, 2 residential

1 with family bridging

22 from HOSP'taI_ 21 people left residential el | e e, | =
2 from Community reablement in Dec 22 osprta’, 1 residential, 1 decease
and 1 other
-
QD
«Q
@D
R H = » n
A Admissions People left residential People went home /\
(Nov 23) reablement (Nov 23) 7 with care, 5 with no care, o
. 2 with family bridging B ]
13 from H°5P|ta|_ 18 people left residential 1 hospital
2 from Community reablement in Nov 22 ospita
IOO:A) 16% 8% 13% 10, 16% 16% 15% % 1% 17% N o o
0% 2% 27% 220, 26% 26.79217%3,30% %635,
2 7 ) B o B a ki | 4.8% 8
5 % . 21% 56% 24% 8 . # 0
. T 6% E 7934.8% y . %’
Percentages leaving g zz: b | | TN Ed ks iz £
. . o ° 6 90% 2
Residential Reablement 2 o 17 7 7% 700 © 3
& Outcomes R 1 B | 11 & T11¥1711 ? 0 ©
20% ] 2% ¢ 4% 46.6% 4 % 20
10% 10
0% % % 4:8% 0

Do DD DD D DD D A
¥

VAN L A A A% v I B I R PN
& & & Q@* N %

o
D N U b PL DD D P
DD DD DD DD DD DD D DD DD
W T YT

Home Independent Home POC Home Family Bridging Res/Nursing/Hospital M Deceased emmmm=Total discharges

14 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Bonymaen House

Total Discharges each month within and over targeted 42 day assessment period

Reasons for discharge over 42 days
January 2024

@®3. Under 42 days Assessment @ 1. Over 42 days Assessment

o

=

g 20

w

w

@

w

(U]

<

w

>

S0

o~ 17

~F

—

@

=

=

@ g
= = = = E = = ] @ 3 ] = = = = 2 = # ) ] ] ) =
5 ] g = c 5 5 E] 3 ] E] ] 5 g 5 c S 5 3 X 3 8 5
= 2 ) =< = - =2 [= =] E S = 2 ] =< = - =) [ =] [= £ =
5 5 = 2 5 b=} @ & 5 5 = E T b=} o g 5
- £ a o 2 @ - £ a O & @ -

a z =] = z a
2022 2023 2024
Month = Not recorded

G abed

What is working well? What are we worried about? What we are going to do?
¢ Continued high percentage of people returning o Where assessments over 42 nights, can be ¢ Data collection under revision to capture
home with no POC, reduced POC. due to awaiting POC or long term care. actual end of assessment.

e Consistent assessments under 42 days.

e Good working relationships with Home First
teams.

e Service continues to run at capacity.

15 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Dec 23

o
O
Q
(0]
N
o

Nov 23

1600
1400

§1zou

£1000

=

S 300

2 600

£

2 400
200

Jan-22 JEEE

Feb-22

34

42

mar-22 |
apr-22 I
May-22 |

3]

Started

32 from Hospital

16 from Community

46 Started Jan 23

3]

26 from Hospital

71 Received Jan 23

80 O

Community Reablement

@

Received

21 No Care

10 Hospital, 13
same/more care, 3
deceased, 1 long term

\
Left Z

35 Left Jan 23 placement
26 No Care
46 E) 1 Hospital, 15

same/more care, 2

Started 8 from Community Received Left deceased, 2 Unknown
22 No Care
. 2 long term placement,
-8 33 from Hospital 86 () 47 E) 5 Hospital, 14
Started 9 from Community Received same/more care, 1

Hours of Reablement Provided a Month

Iy [ ] [x] oy L]
ol ool o o 3
I:
[
-

:
3

=

Jul-22
Oct-22
Jan-23
Feb-23
Jul-23
Aug-23

£ [ -9 a
3 J a @
- g U

MNowv-22
Apr-23
May-23
Sep-23
Oct-23
Nov-23
Dec-23

]
L
L]
o =

I Reablement Actual Number of users

120
100
80

[=)]

0
0

[

0
0

80%
60%
40%
20%

0%

mm %independent

Left deceased, 3 unknown

Percentage leaving Community Reablement

Independent
Nyt
Il N
o oMM [1a] (23] M =
NNNNNNNNNNNNN
C.th>C_QﬂCL‘-‘>UC
- = =] ]
2 f s g £ 2= 2 &0 2 a8 =

No of Clients Leaving Independent

16 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



This data continues to be validated. Average Length (Days) of Stay Re-ablement & Bridging

140

120

99
100

131
118 113
92 92
w8 87
a1 3738
2l .0 26l 3° T D II 78 30
0 I I I I I I I I I

Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

8

o

6

(]

4

(=]

2

=]

m Reablement m Bridging

g
®© Reablment Planned Hours Vs Actual Hours o
b Bridging Planned Hours Vs Actual Hours
1500
1085 2000 1477
1000 662 1500 1205
1000
500
0 0
Jan-24 Jan-24
B Reablement Actual B Reablement Planned M Bridging Actual  H Bridging Planned
61% planned care delivered 82% planned care delivered

17 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

6000

4000

2000

Long Term Care Planned Hours Vs Actual
Hours

5133
4127

Jan-24

B Long Term Actual  ® Long Term Planned

80% planned care delivered



What is working well?

¢ Increase in the admissions into service.

¢ Increase in individuals receiving care and
support.

e Bridging average length of stay reduced by
12 days compared to December.

e Increase in staff moral following grant
funding for development/ well-being
activities.

What are we worried about?

¢ Only one Senior Carer cover to assess and
facilitate discharge, during the weekend.
Which could impact in hospital discharges
being delayed.

e 12% reduction in people leaving reablement
independent.

\ What we are going to do?

Authorisation granted to backfill vacant
Community Care Assistant posts.

81 abed

18 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Long Term Domiciliary Care

Due to when the service receives Call Monitoring Logs and Invoices from external providers, we are always 2 months
behind in reporting for externally commissioned care. In addition, our dom care hours and number of people receiving
care are based on actuals from invoices. This can lead to delays in achieving accurate results as some providers are 8

weeks behind in their invoicing.

Number of People Receiving Care Total Domiciliary Hours Delivered

Jan-24 et Jan-24 1205
Dec-23 Dec-23 b 39798
Nov-23 Nov-23 H 36767
Oct-23 Oct-23 W 37917
Sep-23 Sep-23 % 34712

% Aug-23 % Aug-23 W 36298

@ 0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 0 5000 10000 15000 20000 25000 30000 35000 40000 45000

M Bridging M External M In-house M Bridging M External M In-house

Average Weekly Hours Per Service User per Month

20.0
14.0 13.9

13.1 13.2 13.2 13.7

15.0

10.0
5.3

Weekly Hours

5.0

Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

HIn-house M External M Bridging

19 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Number of Brokerage Referrals

350
300
Brokerage Reports are on the 250 B erane Wating Let
development list for the WCCIS o0 roKerage THatng H
team.
150 O Number or Service
Change Requests
100
=0 B Number of New
Requests
0
ol odoed oo Lo T+ o TR o TR« o TR+ o TR o T 5 ] Lo T+ o TR o T« T 1+ | 3
5 S B B L L S L B L B B S L L S
E > £ 5 W o g 2 2 £ o 5 5 = c 035 Wwo oy oz 92 0c
@ 2233952485228 32338328-%
ol
o

20 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



External Domiciliary Care

What is working well?

Continued stability of services
Maintenance of sector capacity

Operation of block contracts
Implementation of IStumble falls response
pilot

What are we worried about?

e Ongoing operational cost pressures.

e Capacity to address rising costs given
departmental budget pressures.

e Changes to sponsorship scheme for
oversees workforce and potential to
disrupt services.

What we are going to do?

Monitor services and respond to pressures
in a timely way.

Increase fees paid for services and address
cost pressures in so far as budget
limitations will allow.

Maintain fuel subsidies for 24/25 to help
with increased fuel costs.

Work with CIW and partner organisations to
share information about / understand
implications of changes to sponsorship
scheme.

Iri?ternal Long Term Care

What is working well?

The ongoing work reconfiguring the care
runs in the long-term care team to ensure
there is sufficient carer resource to cover
the work. This in turn will enable the
service to ensure that Reablement carer
resource is ring fenced for reablement
(preventative) activity and whilst at the
same time improving continuity of care staff
to individual clients.

Increase in staff moral following grant
funding for development/ well-being
activities.

What are we worried about?
e See reablement narrative above.

\ What we are going to do?

See reablement narrative above.

21 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Residential/Nursing Care — Permanent (Funded/ Part Funded)

We have worked with the finance teams and fully revised our methods to ensure accurate information. Alternative methods
of gathering this data are being investigated to see if we can get faster accurate data. WCCIS is being developed to fully
meet requirements for internal & external residential care and reports have been developed.

Previous months information is updated as systems are updated.

Dec 23 -:):I E) C)

Admissions Discharges Transitions

39 Admissions Dec-22 51 Discharges Dec-22

People in Place in Residential / Nursing Care

1200
1003 996

o2 17 0 17 B 7 o 8

Admissions Discharges Transitions

200

Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23

M LA Residential M Private Residential M Nursing

oct23 29 3 30 B9 O

Admissions Discharges Transitions

22 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



External Provision

\ What are we worried about?
e Generally, the sector is stable. ¢ Ongoing inflationary pressures.

What is working well? What we are going to do?

¢ Maintain programme of joint contract

e Implementation of joint monitoring processes
with Swansea Bay Health Board.

e Increasing sector occupancy leading to more
stable services and reduced unit cost for care
home operators.

Continued low occupancy levels at a small
number of homes creating potential
financial instability for some providers.
Increasing number of third-party charges
paid for by LA.

Capacity to address rising costs given
departmental budget pressures.

monitoring arrangements with SBUHB
Monitor services and respond to pressures
in a timely way.

Increase fees paid for commissioned
services and address cost pressures in so
far as budget limitations will allow.
Ongoing monitoring of occupancy levels
and assessment of risk to individual
services.

€g abed

23 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Older People Internal Residential Care
Permanent & Step Up / Step Down

WCCIS is now being used to record and collect data on Internal Residential Care. All data continues to be validated.

Admissions

Service Element 2 @ Assessment Be... @Awaiting Disc... @ Awaiting LT ... ®Awaiting PO... @®Emergency ... @Pending Ass... @ Fermanent - @5Step Cown - @5iep Up - @Temporary -

&1

o) 56
=

o

E

=

[m]

a 40

b}

=

4

&

i

e 0

=

3

=]

° _

[v]
August September October Monemkber December January
2023 2024

o Month

QD
«Q

D

al

n

Average time in Service for discharges between August 2023 and January 2024.

1250

Average Time spent in se.

&
Aug 2023 Sep 2023 Oct 2023 Now 2023 ac 202 Jan 2024

24 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

Discharges

Discharges by month by Year and Month

20 13

) 12

.15 .
o

August Seprember October Movember December January
2023 2024

Discharges hy marnith

Month

Discharge Destinations between August 2023
and January 2024.

Own Home - Brokerage POC
2 [1.75%)

End of Respite 107 {33.867%)



Clients in Place During Each Month

@ Permanent @ Temporary @ Assessment Bed @Emergency Placement @ Awaiting POC @ Awaiting LT Placement

&0

60

y, Assessment Bed, Emergency Placeme..
e
(o]

d

g8 36k

<F]

220

—

| =

[+E]

| =

£

[

o

o

0
= = 5 = = u = = a a a il = = 5 = = z = = ] a il T =
3 3 = = = = = = = = = = S S = = = = = =) = = = = =S
E = = =T = = = z2 = = E = = =T = = = 2 = = E
= 8 =L 2 = = g = o L 2 = 2 a =
- L % = o ) - i % = = [} -
w = = i = o
2022 2023 2024
Month

25 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



What is working well? What are we worried about? \ What we are going to do?

e Average time in service for short term e Bed usage dropped slightly. e Monitor use and demand for long term,
placements continues to decrease. short term and respite beds.

o Westfield- consistent flow through from hospital
to home or preferred home of choice.

e Increased long term residential beds.

e Emergency admissions process working well.

¢ Revised allocation of long term, short term and
respite in response to demand and need.

e Conclude recruitment of staff in
reconfigured staffing structures.
e Conclude allocation system for respite.

9g abed

26 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Internal Day Services for Older People, Special Needs and
Learning Disabilities

a 3
Jan (102 48 249 46 | 42 | 487
2024 _ . _
Older Special Learning  Mental Flexible TOTAL
\_ People Needs Disability  Health Support .
- —\
5
QD
Dec (107 49 248 46 | 42 | 492
2023 Older Special Learning Mental Flexible TOTAL
People Needs Disability Health Support _/
™\
Nov @ @ @ ° o
Older Special Learning  Mental Flexible TOTAL
\_ People Needs Disability ~ Health Support Y,

27 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



The data below is extracted from Abacus plus a manual record of Health users and a number of other recording systems. This is the number
of unique people who have attended a day service, together with the number of places used each month. Updates on attendance are made
by the service and therefore there can be some delays in achieving accurate fully up to date data. Internal Day Services Service Provisions
are soon to officially ‘go live’ on onto WCCIS. This will provide a streamlined approach to gathering data on unique service users and
admissions and discharges. Work has also commenced on External Day Services Provision.

@ Total sessions attended over month @Number of people receiving a service

SRR s R R TR P TERPERPERRRRRY.” Y P

374
3705 3573 3502

3354 3377

8gG abed

EK SR - . - - . P P P - -
Jan 2023 Mar 2023 May 2023 Jul 2023 Sep 2023 Nov 2023 Jan 2024

What is working well? What are we worried about? What we are going to do?
e Increase in attendance. ¢ Increasing complexity of need against e Reviewing use of day services as part of

staffing levels and environments. Transformation including staffing and

e Flexible workforce to support demand
assets requirements.

across day services.

28 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Direct Payments

Number of Payments each Month Plus number of Unique Service Users

Total Payments (excl Care Payments) and Number of Service Users by Month

@ Total Payments (excl Care Payments) @ Total Service Users (Children) @ Total Service Users (Adults)

790 793 793 792

200

600

200

Total Payments lexcl Caé'§ %ments}. Total Service User...

Febru.. March  April May June July  August Septe.. Octob.. Move.. Dece.. January Febru.. March  April May June July  August Septe.. Octob.. MNove.. Dece.. January
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2022 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024
Date

29 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Number of Payments each month based on Type of Payment

Number of payments based on payment type

- 731 729 T34 733 45 719
708 702 679 701 :

731

600

400

200

425
73

qQ, ,.g, ,..;g, ,..;}'ﬂ ,L't-
eﬁe o {\\.35'# @d‘:@\c}“ ?Qﬁ s \J\}f'?’ i oa}ﬁ 6:0'3 & &\Oe o
'O'Z’L b .;(e, 'P“c’

09 eﬁgétivity Related Expenses, Agency, Overnigh...

o

S

751 761 745 744

462 455 469 o 493 8493 R 490
) 64 || 64 61 57 j§ 56

g -\QJ’ ne:b n(ﬂ} nd?:" ndb’ QTL’ 4()-\;" qc:b aqlr:ndi': c:.'f’f\ NS 1 "'7\{\{51 e {Qf) «Q’i‘?’ Q'f] S v
N8 "8 ‘. )
¥ \3 \I\?’& ?_Q \\E\a \]\}{\ ‘5\}‘ B o

‘:

797 799 797 792 @ Activity Related Expenses
@ Agency

® Overnight Care

®FA

@ Respite

@ 5Standard Rate

Variable

@®DP ILF

\:‘s \'F' \'3::"#
S ,@c:‘ o"-@ @5%{0 2&& o

What are we worried about?

DPs for carers are underused.
Resources and processes are impeding
capacity to match PAs with people waiting
to receive care.

Business support capacity to achieve
performance reporting and answer
telephones and perform other
administrative functions is insufficient.

e Social Work Team satisfaction with time
taken to access DP is low across some
teams.

o Effective managed account services. o

e Successful recruitment of Pas. o

e Systems thinking review to improve DP
processes and improve experiences for
recipients and SW teams. o

e Annual increase in number of people
receiving DP as an alternative to
commissioned care.

Negotiation to recover additional costs
incurred because of managed account
failures continues.

Continue to manage customer expectations
via phone and email messages to enable
reply within 48hrs.

Complete systems thinking review.

Trial process changes with C +F colleagues
to reduce time and improve experience for
DP recipients.

30 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Safeguarding Response

Safeguarding are now recording Inappropriate Referrals as Casenotes on WCCIS, therefore they are no longer counted/included in the
Referrals total. Consequently, Referral numbers will be less than previous reported and Consultations & Inappropriate Casenotes will be

higher.

Timeliness of response to
Safeguarding Reports

100%
- R
17

80%

70% 1

26

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24

T9 abed

B Responded over 7 days
Responded within 2-7 days

B Responded within 24 hrs

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

Determination Outcomes of those
Completed

16

12

Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24
M Determination 4 — No further action required

Determination 3 — Adult at Risk and action to
protect needed.

H Determination 2 — The adult is not at risk but
may have care and support needs.

B Determination 1 —Immediate protection
required

Reports / Actions

(. )

74 Reports received Jan 24
63 Determinations completed

89% responded to within 7 days
210 Consultations held

40 inappropriate

68 Reports received Jan 23

31 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

68 Determinations completed

\_

53 Reports received Dec 23
52 Determinations completed
83% responded to within 7 days
176 Consultations held

24 inappropriate

J

68 Reports received Nov 23
67 Determinations completed
87% responded to within 7 days
175 Consultations held

42 inappropriate




Referrals/Consultations % Breakdown

100.00%
90.00%
80.00%

70.00%

60.00% . o — e . am—e o . e
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%

-
v Vv 9% v Vv > > > ¥ ) ¢} |
Q % % A% "% 1% v v v v v % v
: : « ‘, 7 \, i « 4, & ; : « ‘, : \, ; Vv « 4, & ;
< F & @R §gz?\ NS \?.o (,)Q/Q F O & @R @’b\\ RN \?g% K & &
o
N I % of Referrals [ % of Consultations mm % of innapropriate — — Linear (% of Referrals) =« Linear (% of Consultations)

Consultations January 2024
All Refermls Recorded in the Safeguarding Team with Reason for Referral
Housing, 1, 0% Statutory SW

eam 14, 7%

Health, 11, 5% |‘

32 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024

23

WAl at Bk @ Al Frolnnacral Alae @ PN Becamad B Goidde @ Soicidh Impact

b
=l
A
il
Sl Sap e ey D lae




Professional Concerns - Sources

20
18
. -
16
14 13
12 | 11
10
10 9 I
: - -
6 6
6 — 5 5 ,
4 - —
2
unl . N m M - w m
Nov Dec
5 2023 2024
3
o | 3rd Sector organisation I Care Regulator B Education
w
0 Health 7 Internal (Social Worker, other team) 7 Local Authority
o Other 1 Police B Provider
PPN Types
160

140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan
2022 2023 2024

I W Case Note emmmReferral —emmmTask

33 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



What is working well? What are we worried about? \ What we are going to do?

e Continue to develop meaningful links e Demand on the team, team is very busy. e Continue to prioritise the teams emotional
through partnership working with One Stop | ¢ Incredibly high number of professional well-being in order to manage the volume
Shop. concerns, placing pressure on the Team of work coming into the team.

e Fully Staffed. Manager and taking away the ability to e Continue to develop meaningful links and

e 210 Consultations held, demonstrating that focus on development work. These are work collaboratively with partner agencies
we are being fully utilised for advice and from all sectors, including NHS, Care and third sector in order to creatively
guidance. Sector, University and Police. address the safeguarding worries that are

e 89% AAR reports responded to within 7 reported to the team, protecting the limited
days. resources that we have within SS.

-

&

(0]
(o]
N

34 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



Timeliness of Deprivation of Liberty Assessments

Quarterly Best Interest Assessor
Performance

DolS Backlog and New Referrals

160
Nov 2023 -Jan 2024

. ‘

140

120

80 0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350
;JU ~
@ M Authorisations M Allocations
% El
ol
40 Quarterly Signatory Body
& g Performance
20 v

Nov 2023 - Jan 2024

N A D D D DD D DD DD D D D D D s D o
N N N I i L U i i A I R N G L i L G S R N4
e S S S e S e i e S e S e
F ¥ & KR & TR O FE T EE R & YR TS

e Duty Desk Backlog ~ «====New Applications Received Nov 2022 - Jan 2023 -

50 100 150 200 250 300

o

B Authorisations M Allocations

35 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024



What is working well?

Prioritisation Tool to identify
applications where there is a greater
time pressure in the need to undertake
assessments. For e.g., person
objecting.
e IMCAS/39A, 39C and 39D: paid
RPR/litigation friends. Excellent
relationships with Mental Health
Matters Wales monthly/quarterly
meetings / COP section 21 a
challenges
Active COP cases - there are a number
supported by external legal team and
several others supported by internal
legal team. Daily contact with both
external and internal solicitors
/barristers-good relationships have
been developed /active case data base
is extremely useful in maintaining
overview of cases.

99 abed

e Team continues to make use of ADASS

What are we worried about?
Relentless pace of 4 assessments each week

for the Best Interest Assessor’s (BIA). One
BIA 29-hour vacant post in dols team and 1
staff sickness in team also impacts on number
of assessments completed per week.
Applications received each month continue to
exceed the number receiving a decision;
Impact increases the supervisory bodies’
backlog. Screening demand on time due to
incorrect/incomplete information received from
care homes. Risk to person being
deprived/COP challenges/Costs to LA. The
Managing Authority do not always request
further authorisation-impact person not
safeguarded/challenges in COP.

\ What we are going to do?
To Continue to monitor performance in

DOLS team using various performance
measures. Including new reporting
measures that we are currently
considering.

Team manager and senior practitioners
Continue to provide the support to the BIAs
in a way that best suits them, on an
individual basis/sickness absence
monitoring in progress with HR and OH
support.

As part of development plans for DoLS
team -Team manager and Seniors to target
care homes to visit in future to educate
manager re applications/dols
process/conditions.

Meetings ongoing with external and
internal legal team to discuss/update
current active COP cases/data base.

36 Adult Services Management Information Summary Headline Report — January 2024




Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing this form.

Which service area and directorate are you from?
Service Area: Tackling Poverty Service
Directorate: Adult Social Services

Q1 (a) What are you screening for relevance?

New and revised policies, practices or procedures

Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider community, service
users and/or staff

Efficiency or saving proposals

Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning

New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment, e.g., new
construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services, changing location
Large Scale Public Events

Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation

Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services
Board, which impact on a public bodies functions

Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service delivery and
improvement plans)

Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language strategy)
Major procurement and commissioning decisions

Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh language opportunities and
services

Other

N

X OO0 O dod oo

(b) Please name and fully describe initiative here:

This is an llA Screening for the latest Adult Services Performance Report for Adult Services for
the Adult Services Scrutiny Panel. The report outlines the key performance areas of Adult
Services provision outlining how we’re meeting our statutory obligations and requirements of
relevant legislation and procedures we are required to follow e.g. Wales Safeguarding
procedures.

The Adult Services Scrutiny Panel is being asked to consider the report and give its views /
make recommendations to the relevant Cabinet Member.

There is no impact for the report itself. Recommendations made by the committee to inform
future activity may require further investigation through the full 1A process which would be
actioned at the appropriate time.

Q2 What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could be positive
(+) or negative (-)

High Impact  Medium Impact Low Impact Needs further No
Investigation Impact
+ - + - + -

Children/young people (0-18) OO 1] HiR [] X
Older people (50+) X [ N N [] L]
Any other age group HER XL (][] [] L]
Future Generations (yet to be born) [] [] (1] X [] L]
Disability X [] Hil 10 L] L]
Race (including refugees) HEN X[ il [] [l
Asylum seekers ][] X[] L1101 [l []
Gypsies & travellers HEN X[] il L] []
Religion or (non-)belief HEN PagBg1 | 1] [] []



Sex ][] X[] il L] L]
Sexual Orientation ][] X [] L1101 [l []
Gender reassignment (][] X[ (10 L] []
Welsh Language HEN X il [] L]
Poverty/social exclusion X [ (10 il [] []
Carers (inc. young carers) X (1] 10 [] []
Community cohesion HER X[ (1] L] [l
Marriage & civil partnership [1[] X[ il [] []
Pregnancy and maternity HEN X[ L1101 [l []
Human Rights N X[ 1] [] ]

Q3

Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.g.
engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?

Please provide details below — either of your activities or your reasons for not
undertaking involvement

Co-productive approaches with residents, service users and partners continue to shape our
strategic delivery across Adult Services. All Social Work assessments and care and support
plans are co-produced with service users, applying a strength based approach. Specific
workstreams are being co-produced including a revision of the (Unpaid) Carers Assessment.

Q4

Q5

Q6

d)

Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 in the
development of this initiative:

Overall does the initiative support our Corporate Plan’s Well-being Objectives when considered
together?
Yes [X] No[ |

Does the initiative consider maximising contribution to each of the seven national well-being goals?

Yes [X No[ |

Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working?
Yes [X No[ |

Does the initiative meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs?

Yes [X] No[ |

What is the potential risk of the initiative? (Consider the following impacts — equality,
socio-economic, environmental, cultural, legal, financial, political, media, public
perception etc...)

High risk Medium risk Low risk
[] X
Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other Council service?
X Yes ] No If yes, please provide details below
Page 68



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

The performance of Adult Services does impact on other areas of the Council including
Revenues and Benefits in relation to social care charging and Housing in relation to people
maintaining their tenancies.

Q7  Will this initiative result in any changes needed to the external or internal website?
[ ] Yes X No If yes, please provide details below

Q8 What is the cumulative impact of this proposal on people and/or communities
when considering all the impacts identified within the screening and any other key
decisions affecting similar groups/ service users made by the organisation?

(You may need to discuss this with your Service Head or Cabinet Member to consider more widely if this
proposal will affect certain groups/ communities more adversely because of other decisions the
organisation is making. For example, financial impact/poverty, withdrawal of multiple services and
whether this is disadvantaging the same groups, e.g., disabled people, older people, single parents (who
are mainly women), etc.)

There is no impact for the report itself.

Recommendations made by the committee to inform future activity may require further
investigation through the IlA process which would be actioned at the appropriate time.

We recognise that the delivery of Adult Services impacts people and communities at different
times and often when they are most vulnerable, and the scrutiny of the performance is a key
aspect of ensuring maximum impact and quality of the services where they are needed.

Outcome of Screening

Q9 Please describe the outcome of your screening using the headings below:
Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed (Q2)
Summary of involvement (Q3)

WFG considerations (Q4)

Any risks identified (Q5)

Cumulative impact (Q7)

This is an llA Screening for the Report on the latest Adult Services Performance report.
The Adult Services Scrutiny Panel is being asked to consider the report and give its views /
make recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Care Services.
(NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the ‘Integrated Assessment Implications’
section of corporate report)

[_] Full lIA to be completed

X Do not complete IIA - please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to support this
outcome

Page 69



Integrated Impact Assessment Screening Form

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for agreement before
obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service approval is only required via
email.

Screening completed by:

Name: Amy Hawkins

Job title: Head of Adult Services and Tackling Poverty
Date: 08/03/24

Approval by Head of Service:

Name: Amy Hawkins

Position: Head of Adult Services and Tackling Poverty
Date: 08/03/24

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Page 70


mailto:accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 8

(&
S

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

e

Report of the Cabinet Member for Care Services and Director
of Social Services

Adult Services Scrutiny Performance Panel — 20 March 2024

BRIEFING ON ANNUAL REVIEW OF CHARGES (SOCIAL
SERVICES) 2023/24

Purpose To provide a briefing requested by the Board about the
latest annual review of social services charging

Content This covering report provides detail on the annual review
of social services charges 2023/24, a summary of
related work undertaken in year, and the list of charges
(social services) to apply in 2024/25, as recently agreed
by Cabinet.

Councillors are - Give their views,

being asked to - Consider the report as part of their scrutiny

function

Lead ClIr. Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services

Councillor(s)

Lead Officer(s) David Howes, Director of Social Services

Report Author Simon Jones, Social Services Strategic Performance &
Improvement Officer

Legal Officer Debbie Smith

Finance Officer Chris Davies

Access to Rhian Millar

Services Officer

1. Background

1.1 Swansea Council's Charging (social services) policy sets out the
arrangements for charging citizens for costs incurred when providing
care and support services. The List of Charges, appended to the policy,
details what services are chargeable and the level of charge for the
year ahead.

1.2 Swansea’s Charging (Social Services) policy aims to ensure that
charging, where it occurs, is consistent fair, transparent and applied
equally; that the charges are set out and published in a way that can be
clearly understood. The policy also ensures individuals who are asked
to pay a charge will only be required to pay what they can afford; this is
ensured through the offer of a financial assessment.

Page 71




1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

3.1

Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (The Act) came into
effect in April 2016 setting out the statutory requirements placed on
each Local Authority, to publish their discretionary charges for social
services.

In working a sustainable approach to social care, Welsh Local
Authorities have some discretion in how charges for residential and
non- residential and community-based social services can be applied.
Under the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, a local
authority can only charge:

— up to the cost of providing the service.

— what the person can afford to pay for an assessed for service

Briefing/Main Body of Report

Swansea Council’s seventh annual review of charges is a reflection on

how current charges are working, considering the following:

— Statutory considerations- any changes to national policy.

— How Current charging policy is working in practice.

— Improvements made this year and changes planned.

— Opportunities for any new charges.

— What people are telling us.

— How Swansea’s list of charges compares to other Welsh Local
Authorities.

— Integrated Impact assessment.

The attached main report Appendix ‘A’ provides the detail on the
annual review of charging in social services. It shows the methodology
used, summarises the findings, in proposing a revised List of Charges
to apply in 2024/25, alongside the integrated impact assessment.

The full report considers the impact of the cost-of-living crisis, projected
social care inflation, and most importantly the impact on citizens,
carers, and families.

Set alongside this impact is the context of increasing demand for social
care and support, rising costs associated with social care (wages,
energy, fuel/ transport, food and supplies) affecting the workforce and
supply chain, all of which are impacting on the levels of income
generated in the period. This report also provides Cabinet with an
opportunity to consider the annual review, the charging policy, and to
agree on the list of charges for social services to apply in 2024/25.

Conclusions/Key Points Summary
Cabinet accepted the findings of the annual review of changes, and the

proposals that there are no new service charges to apply in 2024/25,
and to the following recommendations:

Page 72



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

» an inflationary increase of 6% to be applied to all social services
charges to come into effect on 1st April 2024.

» the list of social services charges to apply from 1st April 2024,
for the year 2024/25.

» permission to Adult Services for further work to be undertaken in
2024/25 on additional lifeline charging, to covering installation
and replacement costs.

» revised List of social services charges 2024/25 (Main Report
Appendix 1) to be published.

Additional

Welsh Government has recently launched a consultation:

Raising the weekly maximum charge for adult non-residential care
and support

The consultation specifically seeks views on a proposed increase to the
non-residential maximum weekly charge, currently set at £100 by
Welsh Government. Also, that proposed change would ensure only
individuals who have the financial means to pay an increased
maximum weekly charge would do so, as currently applies.

Legal implications

The legal framework for setting charges for social services is set out in
Appendix A, the review report.

A local authority must publish information about its charging
arrangements and general fee levels for statutory and discretionary
care and support services.

Local authorities are empowered (but not obliged) to charge for the
care and support they provide or arrange to be provided to meet a
person’s needs. The charge can only relate to the cost that the local
authority incurs in meeting the needs to which the charge applies.

The charge imposed must be no more than is ‘reasonably practicable
for the person to pay’. The Care and Support (Charging) (Wales)
Regulations 2015 and Part 4 and 5 Code of Practice (Charging and
Financial Assessment) set out the provisions relevant to charging and
financial assessment.

The current regulations stipulate that the maximum charge for non-
residential care and support is currently £100.00 per week. The capital
limit for the purposes of residential care is presently £50,000 and the
capital limit for the purposes of non-residential care charges is £24,000.
These limits may change for the next financial year following the Welsh
Government consultation (section 4.1).

The Care and Support (Financial Assessment) (Wales) Regulations
2015 makes provision about the way in which a local authority must

Page 73


https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fraising-weekly-maximum-charge-adult-non-residential-care-and-support&data=05%7C02%7CSimon.Jones%40swansea.gov.uk%7C0bb75a93f02f4279d2cc08dc36f4e7a4%7C4c2e0b76d4524d358392187fac002efe%7C1%7C0%7C638445672696331044%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hiV9B68uitaEyfvuQfidtYyDepo9wY4pGOmLj0Of%2F78%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fraising-weekly-maximum-charge-adult-non-residential-care-and-support&data=05%7C02%7CSimon.Jones%40swansea.gov.uk%7C0bb75a93f02f4279d2cc08dc36f4e7a4%7C4c2e0b76d4524d358392187fac002efe%7C1%7C0%7C638445672696331044%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hiV9B68uitaEyfvuQfidtYyDepo9wY4pGOmLj0Of%2F78%3D&reserved=0

5.7

5.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

6.1

carry out a reasonable financial assessment of a person’s financial
resources.

There are no additional legal implications.
Finance Implications

Swansea’s Charging (social services) policy applies the corporate
principle of full cost recovery. Charges can only recover some or all of
the costs of services from citizens, as there is a national framework of
caps and thresholds set. Any decision to, or not to, charge for services,
or to subsidise the costs of services should be based on detailed cost
and demand analysis, encouraging fair access, and this annual review
helps to support this process.

Income generation can reduce the costs of services to Council
taxpayers or to provide care and support to more people in need.
Overall, this work contributes towards Swansea Council’s Corporate
Plan strategic objective to safeguard our most vulnerable citizens.

Finance Officers have been fully involved in the work of the Social
Services Finance & Charging group and the review process. The
proposals set out by the review report support the Council’s Medium
Term Financial Plan objectives and assumes that any additional
general fund income generated through the changes to charges
proposed within this report will help to meet additional cost pressures
within the service.

There are no additional financial implications.

Integrated Assessment Implications

The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty
and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations

(Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and must
in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation
and other conduct prohibited by the Act.

. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.

. Foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

. Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-
economic disadvantage.

. Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language.

. Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

Ensure that the needs of the present are met without
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own
needs.

Page 74



6.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that
public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development.
Sustainable development means the process of improving the
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by
taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development
principle, aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’.

6.3  The Integrated Impact Assessment (lIA) process ensures the Council
has paid due regard to the above. It also considers other key issues
and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community
cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the
Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language.

6.4  There IAA screening (Main Report: Appendix 3) reflects that no
changes proposed to the Council’s Charging (social services) policy at
this time.

6.5 The covering report and main annual review report, including the
appended List of Charges (social services) for 2023/24, were
presented to the Cabinet meeting held on 15th February 2024

Glossary of terms:

[IA — Integrated Impact Assessments are a legal requirement within both the
Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic duty), the
Well-being and Future Generation Act 2015 Welsh Language (Wales)
Measure. The legal obligations put a specific requirement on the Local
Authority to undertake integrated impact assessments (l1A) as a way of
examining whether a new or existing function, service, policy, procedure,
strategy, plan or project affects any person or group of persons adversely.

‘The Act’ — Social Services & Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 provides the
statutory, legal framework for local authority social services functions.
Background papers: None

Appendices:
Appendix A— Annual Review of Charges (Social Services) 2023/24

Appendix 1 (to main report) — List of Charges to apply in 2024/25

Appendix 2 (to main report) — Comparison table- other Welsh LAs
Appendix 3 (to main report) — Integrated Impact Assessment Screening

Page 75



A
N

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

B il

Annual Review of Swansea Council’s Charging Policy (Social Services)
2023/24

Summary report on work carried out on behalf of the Council,
by the Social Services Finance and Charging Policy Working Group

December 2023 v5
1. Introduction

1.1  Annual Review report- sets out the finding and recommendation arising
from Swansea Council’s seventh annual review of social services charges to
inform council policy and a revised list of charges, due to come into effect from
1st April 2024. This report builds on work undertaken in previous years to keep
Swansea’s charging fair and equal, and in line with the rest of Wales.

1.2 Purpose and Scope of review - the annual review is part of a programme
of work undertaken during the year by the Social Services Finance and Charging

group.
The annual review considers the following:

— how current arrangements are working

— whether there have been any changes in the policy context,
— operational issues in applying council policy,

— whether charges impacting on demand for social care

— what people are telling us,

— whether there are equalities impacts linked to the proposals.

The scope for the review is:

- To consider the level of inflationary uplift and minimum charging levels that
should be applied to non- residential care charges in the 2024/25

- To consider whether any changes are needed to Council Policy

- To identify any next steps for year ahead

1.3 Social Services Finance & Charging Group

The Social Services Finance and Charging group is chaired by the Director of
Social Services to oversee how the Council’s social services manages financial
process and income generation, in our work with partners and citizens. This
leadership group ensures effective implementation of the Council’s charging (social
services) policy, taking any decisions on changes to policy and through
implementing the list of charges, agreed by Cabinet. This group also monitors the

Page 76



impact of the Council’s charging (Social Services) policy on citizens and carers, as
well as on managing the resources available to the Council.

1.4 Swansea’s approach to the Annual Review of Social Services Charges
is based on Audit Wales best practice for reviewing charging (2016), to help
ensure that Swansea’s charging policy continues to be based on strong principles
of fairness and equality. Charging for services and generating income by local
authorities | Audit Wales

The approach taken continues to embed Council’s approach to achieve full cost
recovery and transparency in how charges are applied and evaluated. Also, in
support of the “Five Ways of working” as set out by the Wellbeing of Future
Generations (Wales) Act 2016:

Long Term
Collaborative
Preventative
Integrated
Involvement

1. ANNUAL
REVIEW

INTEGRATED 2. POLICY

IMPACT CONTEXT
ASSESSMENT

7. REVISIONS
TO COUNCIL
POLICY & LIST
OF CHARGES
TO APPLY

5. FINANCE & 3. SOCIAL
CHARGING SERVICES
PROCESSES CHARGES

4. WHAT
PEOPLE
ARE
TELLING
us

Figure 1 Swansea’s approach to annual review of social services charging

Page 77


https://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities
https://www.audit.wales/publication/charging-services-and-generating-income-local-authorities

1.5 Integrated Impact Assessment -this review applies an integrated impact
assessment to consider whether the list of social services charges as proposed by
the Social Services Finance and Charging group are fully taking into account the
broader range of impacts on the people we serve, our communities in particular
those groups with protected characteristics.

1.6 Proposed List of Charges - This annual review carried out on behalf of the
Social Services Finance and Charging Group proposes a revised List of Charges
to come into effect in 2024/25 and which are then appended to the Swansea
Council’'s Charging Policy (Social Services) on the public website.

2. Policy Context
2.1 Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 (Part Five)

Local authorities are empowered to charge for the care and support they provide /
arrange to be provided (under sections 35 — 45 of the 2014 Act) to meet a person’s
needs. The charge can only relate to the ‘cost that the local authority incurs in
meeting the needs to which the charge applies’ (s59(2)).

(‘the Act’), determines that a local authority can only charge individuals:
. Up to the cost of providing the service
. What the person can afford to pay for an assessed for service

These conditions are designed to ensure that local authorities do not charge for the
actual assessment process — even if the person in need is a ‘self-funder’.

2.2  Statutory requirements. Under section 59 of the Act, there are recently
(amended) Care and Support (Charging) (Wales) Regulations 2015 [2], version 5
of the Part 4 and 5 Code of Practice (Charging and Financial Assessment, updated
April 2020). These all determine that Welsh Local Authorities must publish their
own interpretation of the relevant Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act Code
of Practice, how any discretionary powers conferred by the Welsh Government will
be exercised in the year ahead and a list of charges to apply.

2.3 Discretionary powers- Where a council decides to charge for the care a
person receives, it must do so in accordance with the regulations and codes of
practice, as above. Welsh Councils retain considerable discretion on which social
services are charged for, and the level of charge. The Welsh Government’s social
services charging policy framework requires Councils to show citizens how they
intend to apply discretionary powers on charges for social services, within a
charging policy.

2.4  Statutory limits and thresholds. The Act also states that any charges for
social care cannot be set at a level higher than the cost of providing the service.
That charges can only relate to the ‘cost that the local authority incurs in meeting
the assessed, eligible needs for managed care and support, to which the charges
may apply (section 59-2).

Page 78



Any changes to allowances that may apply in 2024/25, are not yet confirmed by
Welsh Government, here is link to current guidance:

Charging for social care | GOV.WALES

2.5 Policy Changes within Wales

Social Care is devolved to the Welsh Government, and yet dependent on the UK
Government for any additional funding to sustain the current charging and funding
model.

2.5a Senedd Committee report: “Paying for care and support services (adult social
care) - a guide for constituents” was published in January 2022.

payving-for-care-a-quide-for-constituents-english.pdf (senedd.wales)

2.5b Rebalancing Care and Support- consultation

Welsh Government’s recent public consultation on ‘Rebalancing care and support’,
followed the publication of a White Paper (2021) which set out a number of
proposals to “reduce complexity, increase sustainability, and strengthen
integration”.

It proposed focussing on three areas for improvement:

- refocussing the fundamentals of the care market,
- reorientation of commissioning practices; and
- evolution of integration mechanisms.

2.6 Policy changes in UK

In some ways the England direction of travel is mirroring that which is already in
place in Wales. Anyone who requests public funded social care must undergo a
needs assessment and a means test, and only those with highest needs and the
lowest financial assets are likely to receive support. Anyone with assets or capital
of more than £23,250 must pay for all social care themselves.

2.7 Legal Challenges

If a person believes that the charge is ‘more than reasonably practicable’ for them
to pay, they have the right to complain to the Council or to the Public Ombudsman
and they are entitled to ask the Council for charges to be reconsidered. In Wales
the charges for non-residential, community-based care and support are part of the
national charging framework as outlined approve and a person’s contribution is
capped nationally at £100 per week. There have not been any successful legal
challenges of social care charging policy reported in Wales this year.

Challenging adult social care decisions in England and Wales
(equalityhumanrights.com)

Page 79


https://gov.wales/charging-social-care
https://senedd.wales/media/qqzfkscq/paying-for-care-a-guide-for-constituents-english.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/inquiry-challenging-adult-social-care-decisions-in-england-and-wales-report.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/inquiry-challenging-adult-social-care-decisions-in-england-and-wales-report.pdf

3. Social Services Charges

3.1 Swansea Council’s Charging (social services) policy. All charges
relating to social care are covered by Swansea Council’s Charging Policy (Social
Services) — version 5. Charging Policy (Social Services) - Swansea

3.2 Key Principles Swansea Council aims to be clear, fair and transparent in
what we charge for, and we do this by publishing an annual schedule/ list of
charges, as set out in a Swansea Council Charging Policy. There are some
‘fairness’ issues in applying this national charging policy, which in effect imposes a
charging ceiling, which can mean everyone may be charged the same regardless
of wealth or amount of service received, over a certain amount. The financial
assessment is carried out, to means test this approach, though still this will clearly
have greatest impact on those people with less income.

3.3 Swansea Council’s financial rules expect that paid officers work within
the principle of full cost recovery, and we are continually working to improve our
understanding of the costs of delivering services to the public, and the factors
which cause variations in costs over a period of time, such as occupancy rates,
staffing costs and inflationary pressures.

3.4  Opportunities for Potential/ New Charges - Welsh Government’s current
charging framework allows for certain discretion in charging adults for Care and
Support services. In exercising this discretion, the Council must consider carefully
whether any additional care and support services should to be added to the list of
charges; whether within the community-based category, or by applying a flat rate,
and the cost/ benefits of doing so.

3.5 List of Social Care Services not subject to charges

The following table sets outs a list of Council’s social care services not subject to
charge, i.e. social care services not referred to in Appendix 1 List of Social
Services Charges to apply in 2024/25. Many of these services have been actively
considered during the past few years, and the current position of the Social
Services Finance & Charging group is shown but subject to review.

Council service subject to Latest position:
discretion
Commissioning support — partners Via recharging
including administration cost
Carers support services Not currently applied
Community Alarm Service Charges see paragraph 3.6
Deferred Payments- administration see paragraph 3.7
Self-funders - administration Not currently applied
Local Area Coordination Not currently applied
Occupational Therapy —assessment for Not currently applied
provision of equipment & assistance
Employment related services Not currently applied
Other- Preventative Not currently applied
Social Development Services Not a calculated fee
Care and Housing Support Not a calculated fee
Page 80


https://www.swansea.gov.uk/article/9516/Charging-Policy-Social-Services

Services to Children, Young People & Not currently applied
Families, including Supervised Contact
Foster Care, Family Support, Special
Guardianship

3.6 Deferred Payments

The Councils offers deferred payment agreement to offset the bill of charges for
social care, with a timetable for resolution, which may be achieved through the sale
of property. The timetable is often complicated by factors such as probate, housing
and the housing market. It has been the view that charging additional
administration or interest costs adds more financial cost, more work for the Council
and additional complications in a relatively small number of cases, for what would
be limited revenue source. The Council is considering a set-up fee to administer
the deferred payment agreement, and feasibility work, including consultation will
take place this year.

3.7 Community Alarms

There are 2538 Swansea Lifeline community customers (October 2023).
Approximately 300 of these are connections linked to an assessed service i.e.
Telecare

3.7.1 The inflationary uplift proposed for all social services changes to be applied
to the Lifeline annual rental cost — to all lifeline customers (see Appendix 1
Swansea Council List of Charges (to apply in 2024/25).

3.7.2 As part of a comprehensive service review, the proposal is to undertake
consultation on the following new charges for Community Alarms (Lifeline):
» One-off charge for installation of new alarms for new customers
» Replacement charging - changes in Terms & Conditions of service
to apply a charge for any replacement pendants as a result of
damage or loss by the customer.

3.7.3 One-off charge for installation of new alarms for new customers
Currently no charge for installation of equipment. Actual cost of installation for all
new lifeline clients is £46 (inclusive of on-costs). A charge for installation of an
alarm is standard practice for Lifeline services. There are approximately 600 new
installations per year in Swansea.

3.7.4 Replacement charging- all customers to whom terms and conditions apply.
Currently there is no charge to clients for supply of replacement pendants where
existing equipment has been lost or damaged. The number of pendant
replacements for loss or damage has risen year on year — in 2023 up to and
including the month of October these totalled 280.

3.7.5 Integrated Impact Assessment- Lifelines

As part of the service review, a separate Integrated Impact Assessment has been
undertaken, and if consultation on these proposals is approved (see
recommendations), Adult Services will report on the outcome.

3.8 Benchmarking - this annual review of charges has also looked at the
2023/24 charging schedules of other Welsh Local Authorities (where published)
and there are several examples of Welsh Council’s discretionary approaches to
social services charging summarised %}atgees(ind of the table in Appendix 2.



4, What people are telling us

4.1 Public consultation- there has been no formal public consultation
undertaken this year in relation to charges, as the Council’s charging (social
services) policy has not changed.

4.2 Complaints/ Compliments

Social Services and Adult Services received more complaints in 2022/23, only a
small proportion relate to the statement of charges, charging policy and financial
assessments.

Some complaints from individuals, their carers or relatives, are directly in relation
to the costs of the cared for person’s care and support. Annual Reports
summarising the Complaints and Compliments received relating to Adult and Child
and Family Services, are reported to Governance & Audit Committee. Work is
currently underway on the latest reports.

Complaints received by Corporate Complaints Team relating specifically to
social services charging (e.g. unhappy with charges levied) in year
Outcome/ Year 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Stage One - Justified 7 4 TBC
Stage One -Partially Justified 2 1 TBC
Stage One - Not Justified/ 1 - TBC
Stage One - Local Resolution /Other | 1 - TBC
Stage One - Not Pursued/ Informal - - TBC
Stage Two - Partially Justified 1 - TBC
Stage Two - Not Pursued/ On-going | 1 2 TBC
Totals (relevant to charges) Stage 1 =11 Stage1=4 | TBC
Stage 2 =2 Stage 2 =3

There are also a high number of compliments praising the professional support
provided, and the skills of the help given to people in accessing a range of social
services.

Page 82



4.3 Public Ombudsman

The Public Ombudsman cannot assess an individual’s ability to pay for the cost of
their care and support services, they sometimes receive complaints about related
matters, which are summarised in a casebook (most recent case book 2021).
https://www.ombudsman.wales/case-books/

5. Finance & Charging Processes
5.1 Financial Assessment

It is important that the financial assessment is offered to the person being charged
for the care and support they actually receive, and that this assessment is carried
out fairly, and accurately, based on the information provided. The financial
assessment takes full account of a person’s income and personal expenses, and it
is also important that this assessment is reviewed as the person’s circumstances
change, and annually.

5.2 Social Care Income and Finance Team

The Social Care Finance Team is part of the Revenues and Benefits Service within
the Financial Services Department and is responsible for:

- Undertaking financial assessments of clients’ contributions towards the cost
of their care

- Collection of those client contributions

- Scrutiny of claims for re-imbursement from care providers

- Payments to care providers for residential and non-residential care

- Payments of Fostering and Adoption allowances including the means test
that determines the allowance paid to an adopting parent

- Payment of Special Guardianship Allowances

- Payment of Direct Payments

In 2022/23, the SCIF Team completed a total of 4,865 financial assessments for
both new assessments and changes in circumstances (5,011 financial
assessments were undertaken in 2021/22).

Below are some highlights of the Team’s activities, which are central to a
sustainable adult social care model in Swansea.

a) Community based care

— 837 care packages were amended due to changes in the care and support
plan or a change of provider.

— 832 care packages have ended for a variety of reasons. These include
changes residential care placement by service user choice, where a person,
is admitted to hospital or deceased.

— The team processed 199 respite stays in the year.

— The team actioned 175 new Direct Payments in 22/23, 218 changes in
Direct Payment P packages have been actioned and 180 Direct payments

have been ended for a variety of reasons.
Page 83


https://www.ombudsman.wales/case-books/

b) Residential / nursing care:

351 placements were terminated for a variety of reasons (for example

deceased, admitted to hospital, discharged to the community or assessed
as self-funding)

example, upgraded to nursing or moved to an alternative home)

5.3

Income Generation

90 placements were reassessed due to a change in circumstances (for

A significant amount of income is generated on behalf of Swansea Council by
applying national social services charging framework within Adult Services. The
following table shows trends in Income Generated over the past five years. The
table does not include ‘technical income’ attributable to changes in the Direct
Payment provider in both 21/22 and 22/23. This is not client income so should be
excluded. Also excluded in this version of the income table is recovery of excess
Direct Payment balances, as relates to a recovery of excess expenditure.

Service Category 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
Community Alarms 487,686 450,380 395,850 494,843 483,117
Day Services 433,814 559,804 241,030 272,057 337,442
Direct Payments 310,536 726,901 762,551 770,769 759,874
Domiciliary Care 2,790,267 2,803,476 2,823,830 2,738,092 2,380,097
Other/Admin. 392,490 545,833 378,394 300,569 441,193
Residential Care 11,579,594 12,845,876 11,628,620 11,007,404 12,663,394
Grand Total 15,994,386 17,932,271 16,230,274 15,583,734 17,065,117

Table 3. Adult Services Yearly Analysis of income/ income related to charging by type - figures based on information
within the Council’s financial ledger

Main Points from previous table:

> Significant amount of income is generated by applying national social
services charging framework within Adult Services

> Actual income has increased by approx. 9.5%, when compared with the
previous year.

> This is the first increase in actual income since 2019/20.

> Thereis likely some residual impact on income levels arising from the
pandemic, as income remains 4.8% below that achieved in the last pre-

covid year.

> There is a small reduction in income from community alarms.

> Day service income has increased as would have been expected.

> Slight reduction in Direct Payments client contributions.

> 13% reduction in domiciliary care-related income.

> Other income has increased following a drop in the previous year.

> Significant increase (£1,656Kk) in residential care- related income

Page 84



5.4  Any projection of income expected within 2023/24 is not an exact science
due to the number of variables involved, for example demand for service, changes
in household incomes, and the impact on thresholds. The Social Service
Performance and Financial Monitoring meeting continue monitor internal and
external income as part of the budget reporting, and action taken is accordingly.

5.5 Debt Recovery / Invoicing

Considerable work has been undertaken through the year to reduce outstanding
debt in social services. We are continually working with citizens, partner
organisations, representatives and social services colleagues to recover these
debts and make appropriate resolutions.

Effective joint working between SCIFT, Corporate Commercial and Procurement
teams and the Social Services Finance officers continues to ensure that all our
invoicing and debt recovery processes are working effectively.

5.6 Personal Debt / recovery

5.61 The Council recognises that a significant proportion of Council services are
funded through service charges. If income is not collected effectively, then the
authority will be unable to properly fund the vital services it provides for the citizens
of Swansea or it will simply mean costs fall to others to pay more to make up the
shortfall.

5.62 Swansea Council also recognises that early engagement from those at risk
of debt or in debt, can prevent debts from escalating, reduce indebtedness and
increase the ability of citizens to meet their financial responsibilities. We know that
anyone can experience financial difficulties at any time and that money problems
do not just affect the person in debt. Families and communities thrive when people
can afford healthy lives and avoid the stress of money worries.

5.63 Swansea Councils aims to take a consistent approach to the collection of
debt and supporting those who are in debt, to help reduce outstanding debts to the
Council and provide the revenue to deliver services.

6. Integrated Impact Assessment

6.1  The current economic situation, as the world continues to respond to the
pandemic, remains one of uncertainty, stories of personal and family struggle and
public facing agencies responding quickly to each set of circumstances as they
arise. This period, with the additional challenges of changes to welfare benefits,
universal credit, inflation rises, specifically food, energy and fuel prices, and the
costs of Brexit are having a devastating impact on some individuals, families,
communities and businesses. Government support to ease these impacts during
the pandemic has largely tailed off for businesses, and the fiscal priority again
seems to be on reducing the public sector borrowing requirement. Additional
investment in Health and Social Care \g/gése%ge to be funded by increases in

10



national insurance, and these changes have been put back. Overall, the financial
outlook for all public services in Wales is likely to be extremely challenging over the
next decade.

A more detailed analysis is set out in the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.

6.2  Deprivation is an important consideration when looking at imposing charges
on the care and support of our most vulnerable citizens and in support of their
carers. The Wales Index of Multiple Deprivation (WIMD) is updated every 4 to 5
years. The most recent index was published in 2019, 17 (11.5%) of Swansea's 148
LSOAs are in the most deprived 10 per cent in Wales (similar to the overall
proportion in 2014). Swansea also has 8 Lower-layer Super Output Areas (LSOAS)
in what is termed Deep-Rooted Deprivation; those that have remained within the
top 50 most deprived — roughly equal to the top 2.6% — small areas in Wales for
the last five publications of WIMD ranks. The current economic situation is likely to
have greatest impact in these areas.

6.3  Overall the financial outlook coupled with high demand for social care and
population changes mean that the Council continues to apply the Welsh
Government’s framework for local authority social services charging to ensuring
the continued sustainability of our services. Swansea’s corporate financial policy
on setting charges still sets out an expectation on all services to aim for Full Cost
recovery where possible, and to operate within the key principles set out in the
Council’'s Transformation programme, and through objectives in the Corporate
Plan 2023-28.

Actions to be taken:

» Further work to be undertaken in 2024/25 on additional lifeline charging, to
covering installation and replacement costs following a full-service review.

» Any proposed changes will be subject to a separate Integrated Impact
Assessment public consultation and reported on separately to Cabinet

7. Revisions to Council Charging Policy and the List of Charges to apply
in 2024/25

7.1 Swansea Council Charging Policy (Social Services)

The Council’s policy and this annual review process, as reflected in this report,
aims to ensure that charging, where it occurs, is consistent, fair and clearly
understood. Individuals when asked to pay a charge will only be required to pay
what they can afford.

The current policy considers the principles set out in the charging and financial
assessment framework introduced by the Act, and the relevant codes of practice.

Public Information and advice about charging is available on the council website,
and leaflet, taking account of individual communication needs, on request.
Swansea Council are committed to giving people a stronger voice and real control
over the care and support they need, tga%g%igve their own well-being outcomes.

11



Actions to be taken:

» Social Services Finance and Charging group ensures that up to date public
information is available on the Council’s website.

» The Charging (social services) policy is reviewed and updated regularly by
the Social Services Finance and Charging group to reflect national policy
and local guidance.

7.2 Changes within the List of Charges as published prior to the start of the
financial year should reflect the many inflationary pressures impacting on the social
care sector. The costs of providing social care services are subject to inflationary
pressures. Significant changes have been made in previous years to ensure that
Swansea’s charging policy is consistent with most other local authorities in Wales,
and that this policy is applied with fairness and equity. Unless Swansea keeps
pace with inflationary increase put into place by other Welsh Local Authorities, then
the gaps will reappear. Inflation (CPI) currently stands at 4.6% (to October 2023),
down from 6.7% in September 2023, and having previously been as high as 10%
in 2022. Whilst the Office for Budget Responsibility is forecasting a fall to 2% later
this year, the impact of in year and past inflation is still being felt. Many of the
household impact items, and costs associated with delivering social care, will have
already increased in price.

The current inflation pressures will remain with their impact on households,
providers and services through energy costs, food costs, travel cost, interest rates
and higher taxation/ national insurance.

These higher costs of providing care coupled with higher social care wages to
meet the real living wage, will continue to impact on the delivery of social services
in 2023/24, and beyond, with a disproportionate impact on Adult Services.

Swansea Council Link: Medium Term Financial Planning 2024/25 —
2026/27

Office for Budget Responsibility: Economic and fiscal outlook — November
2023: EFOs - Office for Budget Responsibility (obr.uk)

Actions to be taken:
» Proposal to Cabinet, on behalf of the Social Services Finance & Charging

group, is to increase all charges by 6% to apply to all set out in the List of
Charges to apply in 2024/25.

» An Integrated Impact Assessment screening has been undertaken, and this
proposal is still considered to be low impact on the basis that everyone who
is the subject of social services charges is offered a fair financial
assessment, and then can expect to be charged within the protection of the
thresholds set under the Welsh Government national charging framework.

Page 87
12


https://democracy.swansea.gov.uk/documents/s90435/8%201%20of%202%20MTFP%202024-25%20to%202026-27.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.swansea.gov.uk/documents/s90435/8%201%20of%202%20MTFP%202024-25%20to%202026-27.pdf?LLL=0
https://obr.uk/economic-and-fiscal-outlooks/

8.

Conclusions

In summary Swansea Council’s annual review of social services has taken into
account the following:

Policy Annual review approach

Social Services charging framework.
What people are telling us.

Continuous process improvements
Integrated Impact.

Comparisons with some other Welsh Las.
Any revisions needed.

Within the current context, it is not deemed necessary or appropriate to consult
upon making any changes to the current charging policy.

9.

Recommendations

Cabinet is asked to accept the findings of the annual review of changes, and that
there are no new service charges to apply in 2024/25:

>

>

>

>

To approve an inflationary increase of 6% to be applied to all social services
charges to come into effect on 1t April 2024.

Cabinet to approve the list of social services charges to apply from 1st April
2024, for the year 2024/25.

Grant permission to Adult Services for further work to be undertaken in
2024/25 on additional lifeline charging, to covering installation and
replacement costs.

The revised List of social services charges 2024/25 (Appendix 1), once
agreed, is appended to the Council’'s Charging (social services) policy.

Page 88
13



Appendix 1 Swansea Council List of Charges (to apply in 2024/25) v1

These are the amount clients will be charged for social care services, subject to any limits on the
maximum charge specified by Welsh Government.

1. Residential Care and Support Services (Local Authority)
Council’s in-house residential care service delivers a high-quality service for individuals with
complex needs, and also offer placements for residential reablement and respite care.

The charges shown below are for the council-run care homes only and are only indicative of the
average weekly costs of care and support, as some individuals may have additional needs to be
identified and charged accordingly.

All charges for residential care are means tested. Residents may only be required to pay a
contribution towards the total weekly cost. In certain circumstances, residents may be required to
pay the full cost of residential care.

a) Long Term Residential Care (Local Authority)
Charges for Services Weekly charges in Weekly charges in % Increase/
2023/24 2024/25
by category of care Comment
Residential Care

/ Council-run only

Elderly Care £708.02 £750.50 6%

Dementia Care £708.02 £750.50 6%

Mental Health £1,855.24 £1,966.55 6%

Learning Disabilities £1,855.24 £1,966.55 6%

Younger Adults £1,855.24 £1,966.55 6%
Page 89

14



b) Short Term Residential Care: respite care (Local Authority)
Weekly charges in

Charges for Services

by category of care

All adults short term
residential care: respite
care

2023/24

£100

2. Non-residential, community-based care and support Services
Domiciliary Care —is care in the client’s home provided by a private sector provider

Home Care —is care in the client’s home provided by the Local Authority

All charges are means tested up to the maximum standard charge as outlined below

Charges for Services per
category of care

All adults Non-residential,
community-based care
and support Services

Domiciliary Care or Home
Care, including respite at
home, supported living

Older Persons Day
Services

Day Services Younger
Adults /Special Needs Day
Services

Charges in 2023/24

£21.87 per hour

£50.82 per day

£63.56 /day

Page 90

Weekly charges in % Increase/
2024/25
Comment
TBC by Continue to
reflect Max.
Welsh Government
weekly charge
set by Welsh
Government
Charges in 2024/25 % Increase/
Comment
£23.18 per hour 6%
£53.87 per day 6%
£67.37 per day 6%

15



3. Flat rate charges for other services provided by Swansea Council

These social care charges for Council run services are discretionary, and are not subject to a
means test, or a maximum weekly charge.

Charges for Services per
category of care

Adult social care charges
for Council run services

Community Alarms
(Lifelines)

Meals (within community-
based, day services)

Court of Protection
Deputyship

Pre-Deputy support
charge

Charges in 2023/24

£165.88 exclusive of VAT
£199.00 inclusive VAT
(Annual)

£4.46/ day

Court of Protection
Deputyship charges as set
in law by the Ministry of
Justice

£5 per week

Page 91

Charges in 2024/25 % Increase/

Comment

£175.83 exclusive of VAT 6%
£210.94 inclusive VAT https://www.sw

(Annual) ansea.gov.uk/co
mmunityalarms
£4.73/ day 6%

Court of Protection
Deputyship charges as set
in law by the Ministry of
Justice

TBC 6%

16


https://www.swansea.gov.uk/communityalarms
https://www.swansea.gov.uk/communityalarms
https://www.swansea.gov.uk/communityalarms

Z6 abed

APPENDIX 2: COMPARISON WITH OTHER WELSH LOCAL AUTHORITIES

a) Table showing latest available information about how Swansea’s social services charges compare to selected other Welsh
Local Authorities. This year due to Covid, information has been collated and updated following a web search for the following

service areas:

Local Authority Home Day Care Direct Residential Care Residential Telecare/ Other
Care (subject to Payments Care
Social Services (subject to | weekly Long Term /Temp Lifeline (per day)
weekly charge) Elderly/ week Short Term/
Charges to 2023/24 e Respite ( (per week)
Swansea (2023/24) £21.87 per | £50.82/ day- Variable £708.02- older £100 Lifelines: flat Meal £4.46
hour older people people rate annual
Updated (Max weekly | charge £165.88 Pre-Deputy
£63.56/ day- £1,855.24 - charge exclusive of Support = £5
adults learning disability | applies to VAT or £199.00 per week
. respite only) inclusive of
£739.85- Nursing VAT
NPT £20 per £36 per Value of direct | £459 Adult Family £100 £5.70 (LL-
_ h payment Placement Extra)
Updated but no figures our attendance (Max weekly
aavailable £882.76 (Pobl charge
charges to new applies)
residents)
Bridgend CC £20.92 £37.29 / day Variable Remodelling £100 £6.55/ week |Meal - £5.66
(one person in
Updated- published list of £70.26/ day (Max weekly household) Teal/snacks
charges is for 2022/23: CPI charge £1.69
may have applied to these rates applies)

17



€6 abed

Local Authority Home Day Care Direct Residential Care Residential Telecare/ Other
Care (subject to Payments Care
Social Services (subject to | weekly Long Term /Temp Lifeline (per day)
weekl har Elderly/ week Short Term/
Charges to 2023/24 cr:::rgZ) charge) Respite ( (per week)
Carmarthenshire CC £20.00 per £19.55 per PA rates N/a £100 Telecare £4.20 | Meals/ snacks
hour session per week £8.50 in day
Updated (community £14.50 per (Max weekly service
support) hour/£110.80 charge £18.77 per
per night . quarter (lifeline | Community
applies) only) Meals £6.00
£53.70 per Laundry
quarter (monitor
& pendant) £3.10 per load
Powys CC £23.50 per | £15.00 per £12.85 per N/a £100 Careline Meal £7.50
hour day hour PA rate Programming &
Updated (Max weekly | |nstallation = 24-hour
Attendance at | £17.26 per charge £48 support
day and hour Micro applies) (supported
employment | enterprise tenancy): £100
services: per week
£15.00 per £19.70 per
day Hour agency
rate
Pembrokeshire CC £21.12 £32.49 (PPC- | Home and In house residential | £100 £2.24- with Meal- TBC
run) Community =TBC (£722.11) (Max weekly | Disablement
Updated Services charge Exemption Appointeeship
rate = £15.71 | In house residential | applies) Certificate Administration
Day EMI =TBC ) Charges = £10
Opportunities= | (£786.21) £2.69 “without Deferred
Disablement
£53.55/day Payment

18



6 abed

Local Authority Home Day Care Direct Residential Care Residential Telecare/ Other
Care (subject to Payments Care
Social Services (subject to | weekly Long Term /Temp Lifeline (per day)
weekly charge) Elderly/ week Short Term/
Charges to 2023/24 charge) Respite ( (per week)
Exemption Administration
Certificate Set-up Cost
(One-off
charge)= £500
RCT £17.00/ £17 per day £10.00 per Determined on £100 £143.98 p.a Minimum
hour hour individual basis weekly charge
Updated- public information (Max weekly = £4.05 per
still showing 2022/23 rates charge week
applies)

19




APPENDIX 3. INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT SCREENING FORM

Please ensure that you refer to the Screening Form Guidance while completing
this form.

Which service area and directorate are you from?
Service Area: Swansea Council
Directorate: Social Services

Q1 (a) What are you screening for relevance?

[] New and revised policies, practices or procedures
] Service review, re-organisation or service changes/reductions, which affect the wider
community, service users and/or staff
[]  Efficiency or saving proposals
[] Setting budget allocations for new financial year and strategic financial planning
[] New project proposals affecting staff, communities or accessibility to the built environment,
e.g., new construction work or adaptations to existing buildings, moving to on-line services,
changing location
] Large Scale Public Events
X Local implementation of National Strategy/Plans/Legislation
[] Strategic directive and intent, including those developed at Regional Partnership Boards and
Public Services Board, which impact on a public bodies functions
[] Medium to long term plans (for example, corporate plans, development plans, service
deliveryand  improvement plans)
] Setting objectives (for example, well-being objectives, equality objectives, Welsh language
strategy)
Major procurement and commissioning decisions
Decisions that affect the ability (including external partners) to offer Welsh language
opportunities and services
[]  Other

(b) Please name and fully describe initiative here:

Annual Review of Swansea Council’s charging (social services) policy
2023/24, and list of charges to apply in 2024/25.

This the seventh annual review of social services charging was carried out on
behalf of the Social Services Finance and Charging group, chaired by the Director
of Social Services.

This 1A screening covers both the Annual Review of Charges (Social Services)
report which sets out any changes within Swansea Council’s Charging Policy
(Social Services), and the proposed List Of Charges to be applied in 2024/25.

The main change to take effect from 1st April 2024 is that all social services
charges are to be increased in line with current inflation and forecasts; this
represents an uplift of 6% There are no new charges proposed by this annual
review.

Clearly there are some impacts arising from applying an inflationary uplift within the
Council's charges (on social care) However all social service non -residential
charges are set within a national legislative framework, and in compliance to
regulations and code of practice as set by Welsh Governments, namely within
Parts 4 and 5 of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, henceforth
‘the Act’.

Page 95

20



Under the Act, citizens to whom the charges apply are protected by some
important policy entitlements:

- right to be offered a financial assessment to consider whether they have the
means to pay a contribution to the costs of their social care and support

- there are clear principles that a person’s ability to pay should not precluding
access to care and support or that the charges for care and support should not
exceed the costs of provision

- there are personal thresholds set by the Welsh Government: namely a maximum
weekly charge to be set at £100 per week,

- Capital and Personal income allowances are also set for people who are subject
to charges in relation to residential care.

Q2 What is the potential impact on the following: the impacts below could
be positive (+) or negative (-)

High Impact Medium Impact Low Impact Needs further No
Investigation Impact
+ - + - + -

Children/young people (0-18) L] [] LI X[] L] L]
Older people (50+) (][] L]0 X[L] L] L]
Any other age group HEN L0 X Ll L]
Future Generations (yet to be born) [ ] [] 1] X[] L] L]
Disability OO N X [ l
Race (including refugees) (][] 0] X[ L] L]
Asylum seekers HEN L]0 XI[] L] L]
Gypsies & travellers HEN L]0 X[] L] L]
Religion or (non-)belief (][] L0 X[ L] []
Sex HEN L]0 X[ L] L]
Sexual Orientation HEN L]0 X L] L]
Gender reassignment (][] L0 X[ L] []
Welsh Language HEN L]0 X[ L] L]
Poverty/social exclusion ][] 10 X[] L] L]
Carers (inc. young carers) (][] L]0 X[ L] []
Community cohesion ][] 10 X[] L] ]
Marriage & civil partnership (][] L]0 X[ L] []
Pregnancy and maternity RN L]0 X [ [
Human Rights N N X[ L] ]

The evidence for a low impact would be the local implementation of a

national statutory framework which was equalities impact assessed prior to
implementation in 2026. Swansea Council in carrying out an annual review of its
own social services charging policy is demonstrating best practice. The policy is
implemented within a clear set of principles, and the offer of a financial assessment
to all social services clients. The annual review process considers any feedback
including any relevant social services complaints received within the past year.
Swansea Council implements a fair an compassionate approach to debt recovery
in relation to charges.

Q3 What involvement has taken place/will you undertake e.g.
engagement/consultation/co-productive approaches?

Please provide details below — either of your activities or your reasons
for not undertaking involvement
Swansea Council is complying with its duties under the Social Services &
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 which allows local authorities to exercise discretion
and to work within the principles of faiggess, transparency and equality. Itis a

21



statutory requirement under Parts 4 & 5 of the Social Services & Well-being
(Wales) Act 2014 for local authorities to reflect and update these charges in a clear
and transparent way, demonstrating fairness and equity to Swansea citizens.

All charging thresholds/ limits to the Councils charges are set by the Welsh
Government, and these are in place to protect citizens against poverty and social
exclusion. Welsh Government undertook a full EIA of the Charging framework
(December 2016):
equality-impact-assessment-part-5-the-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-
2014.pdf (gov.wales)

There have been no significant changes to the national charging framework or
local social services policy since the implementation of the Act. However due to the
unprecedented national rate of inflation, and its impact on social care, there are
wider questions about the funding of social care in Wales to be considered
nationally,

Q4 Have you considered the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales)
2015 in the development of this initiative:

a) Overall does the initiative support our Corporate Plan’s Well-being Objectives when
considered together?

Yes [X] No[ |

b) Does the initiative consider maximising contribution to each of the seven national
well-being goals?

Yes [X No[ |
c) Does the initiative apply each of the five ways of working?
Yes [X No[ |

d) Does the initiative meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs?

Yes [X] No[ |

Q5 What is the potential risk of the initiative? (Consider the following
impacts — equality, socio-economic, environmental, cultural, legal, financial,
political, media, public perception etc...)

High risk Medium risk Low risk

[] [] X

Q6  Will this initiative have an impact (however minor) on any other
Council service?

[ ] Yes X No If yes, please provide details below

Q7 What is the cumulative impact of this proposal on people and/or
communities when considering all the impacts identified within the
screening and any other key decisions affecting similar groups/ service

users made by the organisation?
Page 97

22


https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/equality-impact-assessment-part-5-the-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-05/equality-impact-assessment-part-5-the-social-services-and-well-being-wales-act-2014.pdf

(You may need to discuss this with your Service Head or Cabinet Member to
consider more widely if this proposal will affect certain groups/ communities more
adversely because of other decisions the organisation is making. For example,
financial impact/poverty, withdrawal of multiple services and whether this is
disadvantaging the same groups, e.g., disabled people, older people, single
parents (who are mainly women), etc.)

The Council’s Charging policy (social services) was agreed by Council in March
2016, following a full Equalities Impact Assessment, which was carried out to
consider and consult on how the policy is applies to all client groups that are able
to access residential and non-residential community care services.

A full EIA was completed in 2016/17 to support the introduction of new charges to
Day Services and Respite Care in Swansea Council, to bring the Council in line
with other Welsh Local Authorities. Also last year (2022/23), a full EIA was
completed to reflect the high inflationary impact (10%) on all citizens and
populations groups.

Any impact on individual or population groups with protected characteristics is
mitigated by the Welsh Government’s national charging framework which sets out
the minimum income allowances, capital thresholds and weekly charging caps.

No new charges for social services to existing clients have been introduced in
2023/24, or proposed charges for 2024/25. The main report recommends that
Adult Services are given permission to undertake further work in 2024/25 on
additional lifeline charging, to covering installation and replacement costs,
reflecting the Council’s financial principle of full cost recovery. Also, to impose a
replacement cost to all clients for lost/ damaged equipment. These proposed
changes, following a full-service review, will be subject to a separate Integrated
Impact Assessment public consultation and reported on separately to Cabinet.

This year the annual review of charges carried out this year is proposing a 6%
inflationary increase to charges, to reflect increasing costs of social care, to come
into effect on 1st April 2024, in line with other Council charges.

Swansea Council’'s Charging (Social Services) policy has only been updated to
reflect the current national policy/ links, with no changes proposed to the local
approach or discretionary areas.

Page 98
23



Outcome of Screening

Q8 Please describe the outcome of your screening below:
e Summary of impacts identified and mitigation needed
(Q2)
e Summary of involvement (Q3)
e WFG considerations (Q4)
e Any risks identified (Q5)
e Cumulative impact (Q7)

* Summary of Impacts (Q2) Impacts are low on specific groups, due to the nature
and purpose of the annual review of charging report, in that there are no new or
additional charges. No specific direct negative impact has been identified, during
this annual review of Charging policy.

The mitigation of the burden of charges is controlled by Welsh Government who set
thresholds for personal allowances and caps on the maximum weekly charge. If
service users are charged too much for their services, there is always the risk that
they or their carers may decide they can no longer attend. There is little evidence
that there has been a significant number of people leaving community-based support
services due to charges being applied. Swansea Council has a complaints process
which allows citizens to communicate their views about the service and any
unhappiness they may have about their experiences, and recourse to this channel
has been considered in this report. If citizens are charges too little, then this could
impact on the service offer and the availability of social care in future years.

e Summary of involvement (Q3) Involvement with citizens takes place on an
individual basis, through their social worker, their care and support assessment, and
their individual financial assessment processes. Each of these activities are person-
centred, and delivered through collaborative communication. Council managed
activities such as financial assessment help to reduce any lack of fairness in how
charging is being applied or between different forms of care and support which a
charge may apply.

Social Services also work closely with other departments (Finance, Legal and
complaints) in the Council with our Health partners and with social care providers.

The Council's Charging policy aims to promote fairness, consistency, and
transparency in how a person is made aware, via a statement of a charge, how they
are financially assessed for the charges, and how a request for payment is made.
This clear policy has helped to promote a more informed and clearer relationship
between local authority and people who are charged for their care and support.

The Annual Review of Charges considers whether any further improvements are
needed to the management of the care and support assessment and financial
assessment process to support the implementation of the Council’s Charging policy.
This work is overseen by the Social Services Finance & Charging group, which
meets monthly.

¢ WFG considerations (Q4) Well-being of Future Generation support a sustainable
approach to the planning and delivery of adult social care. By applying the Welsh
Government’s national charging framework, and threshold with fairness and
transparency, the Council is ensuring resources are available for care and support
services to promote the wellbeing of individuals, carers and families in the present,
and for the future.

Page 99
24



e Any risks identified (Q5)

The risk to the Council would be a through legal challenge or complaints, though this
risk is reduced by minimising changes to the current social services charging policy.
Social Services Finance and Charging group continually monitors and improves
current arrangements in applying Charging policy, and the risks to the Council,
taking action to apply any changes needed to current policy or processes, through
its work programme.

We aim to ensure that sufficient, up to date public information is made available on
charging for social care in a suitable format, and in the Welsh Language, that service
users can access. This information, and the List of Charges to apply, is updated
following consideration of the annual review of charging report by Cabinet.

e Cumulative impact (Q7).

Charging for social care may add to the financial burden of individuals, families and
un-paid carers. We apply a set of core principles within the Councils Charging —
social services policy to ensure that individual circumstances are fully taken into
account.

Tackling Poverty service is part of the Council’s Social Services directorate and their
vital work in areas such as Welfare rights, Benefits training, Poverty and Prevention
strategies and targeting financial advice is having a positive impact. A report on the
Tackling Poverty team’s activity and performance is considered by the monthly
Social Services Performance & Financial Monitoring meeting.

(NB: This summary paragraph should be used in the relevant section of corporate
report)

<] Full lIA to be completed

[] Do not complete IIA - please ensure you have provided the relevant information above to
support this  outcome

NB: Please email this completed form to the Access to Services Team for
agreement before obtaining approval from your Head of Service. Head of Service
approval is only required via email.

Screening completed by:

Name: Simon Jones

Job title: Social Service Strategic Performance & Improvement Officer

Date: 4th January 2024

Approval by Head of Service:

Name:
David Howes

Position: Director of Social Services

Date: 4th January 2024

Please return the completed form to accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Page 100
25


mailto:accesstoservices@swansea.gov.uk

Page 101

26



Agenda Item 9

ADULT SERVICES PERFORMANCE PANEL

WORK PLAN 2023-24

Meeting Date

Items to be discussed

Meeting 1 Confirm Convener of the Panel and Co-optee

28 June 2023
Performance Monitoring

4.30pm Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty
Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services
Briefing on Recent CIW Care Home Inspection Reports
Amy Hawkins
Draft Work Plan 2023-24

Meeting 2 WAO Report ‘Together we Can’ — Community

7 August 2023 Resilience and Self-reliance
Invited to attend:

4pm Hayley Gwilliam, Cabinet Member for Community (Support)
Alyson Pugh, Cabinet Member for Wellbeing
Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty
Lee Cambule, Tackling Poverty Service Manager
Tackling Poverty Service Grants 2022-23: Impact
Report
Invited to attend:
Alyson Pugh, Cabinet Member for Wellbeing
Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty
Lee Cambule, Tackling Poverty Service Manager
Anthony Richards, Poverty and Prevention Strategy and
Development Manager
Additional Direct Payments Information
Amy Hawkins
Richard Davies, Strategic Manager Direct Payments Team

Meeting 3 Performance Monitoring

5 September 2023 | Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty

4.30pm Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services

Wales Audit Office Report ‘A Missed Opportunity’
Social Enterprises

Alyson Pugh, Cabinet Member for Wellbeing

Lee Cambule, Tackling Poverty Service Manager
Peter Field, Principal Officer Prevention, Wellbeing and
Commissioning

Page 102




Meeting 4
31 October 2023

4.30pm

Director of Social Services Annual Report 2022/23
David Howes, Director of Social Services

Briefing on Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS)
Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services
Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty

Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services

Meeting 5
12 December 2023

Performance Monitoring
Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty

4.30pm Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services
Briefing on Dementia (including case studies)
Amy Hawkins / Helen St John

Meeting 6 Update on Adult Services Transformation and

30 January 2024 Improvement Programme
Amy Hawkins / Helen St John

4pm Lucy Friday, Principal Officer Transformation

Presentation — Local Area Coordination Update
Invited to attend:

Hayley Gwilliam, Cabinet Member for Community
Lee Cambule, Tackling Poverty Service Manager
Jon Franklin, Local Area Coordination Manager

BUDGET MEETING
12 February 2024

Draft Budget Proposals for Adult Services / Child and
Family Services
Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services

JOINT SOCIAL David Howes, Director of Social Services

SERVICES

MEETING

2pm

Meeting 7 Update on West Glamorgan Transformation Programme

20 March 2024

4pm

Kelly Gillings, Regional Director of Transformation

Performance Monitoring

Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty

Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services

Briefing on Annual Review of Charges (Social
Services) 2023-24
David Howes, Director of Social Services

Meeting 8

Page 103




7 May 2024 Briefing on Llais

Sue Evans, Llais Cymru
4pm
Update on how Council’s Policy Commitments
translate to Adult Services

Louise Gibbard, Cabinet Member for Care Services
David Howes, Director of Social Services

Update on Adult Services Transformation and
Improvement Programme — including progress on
Reviews

Amy Hawkins, Head of Adult Services and Tackling
Poverty

Helen St John, Head of Integrated Community Services
Lucy Friday, Principal Officer Transformation

End of Year Review

Future Work Programme items:

e Local Area Coordination Impact Report 2023-24 (Hayley Gwilliam/ Lee
Cambule) Date tbc

e Update on Progress with WAO Report ‘A Missed Opportunity’ Social
Enterprises (Alyson Anthony/ Amy Hawkins / Lee Cambule) Moved from
January 2024 meeting - Date to be rearranged

e Update on Wellbeing Strategies for Social Services Workforce (date tbc on
work plan 2024-25)

e Recruitment and Retention of Care Staff (dates tbc once new policies
developed)

e Wales Audit Office Reports (dates to be confirmed):

Page 104



	Agenda
	4 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	Minutes
	Conveners Letter to CMs AS Panel 12 December 2023
	Response from Cabinet Member AS Panel 12 December 2023

	6 Update on West Glamorgan Transformation Programme
	IIA Screening Form - West Glam Report AS Panel 20 March 2024

	7 Performance Monitoring
	Adult Services PFM Jan 2024 fin
	Appendix B IIA Screening Form AS perf report scrutiny 20 Mar 2024

	8 Briefing on Annual Review of Charges (Social Services) 2023-24
	Appendix A Review of SS Charges AS Panel 20 March 2024

	9 Work Plan 2023-24

